North County Recreation District - Board Meeting Agenda
Thursday February 19, 2026, 5:30pm
NCRD Fireside Room — 36155 9" St. Nehalem, OR 97131

The NCRD Board will meet in person. For those that do not prefer to attend in person, the Board
will accept written public comment to justins@ncrdnehalem.org.
The Board Meeting will be available via the zoom link below:
https://us02web.zoom.us//88938671878?pwd=sGUw56gqRNsDfUJANBD4exZwylVENY.1

Call to Order
Pledge of Allegiance
Declaration of Potential Conflict of Interest
Public Comment — in-person, written-in, or via Zoom
Correspondence
Employee Recognition
6.1. Kelley Griffin-Whitlock — Patron Relations Specialist
Consent Agenda
7.1. Approval of January Board Meeting Minutes
7.2. Approval of January Executive Director Report
8. Financial Report
8.1. Approval of January Financial Report
8.2. Approval of Audit Report 2024/25
8.3. Acceptance of Plan of Action for Annual Audit
9. Committee Reports
9.1. Communication Committee Update
| 10. Old Business
' 10.1. None
11. New Business
‘ 11.1. Executive Director Review discussion
| 12. Executive Director Report
‘ 12.1. Department Reports and updates
13. Announcements / Calendar
13.1. Riverbend Players — Misery starts 2/27
13.2. March Board Meeting 3/19
13.3. Terry Rob Solo acoustic Guitarist 3/28
13.4. Barracuda — Heart cover band 4/18
14. Board Comment
14.1. General Board Comments
15. Adjournment

ownm e WwWNRE

N

Accessibility: This meeting is accessible to all. Please let us know at 855.444.6273 if you need
any special accommodation to attend this meeting.
NCRD is a Special District established under ORS 266




St North County

oS = Recreation District

Kelley consistently steps in wherever she is needed and approaches every task with a positive, can-do
attitude. She shows a genuine willingness and eagerness to learn new responsibilities, even when it
takes extra time, often asking us to “show her again so she can write it down.” Kelley is almost

always the first to step up for an after-hours or weekend event, showcasing her strong commitment and

reliability.

She cares deeply about her coworkers and the patrons we serve, always looking out for everyone’s well-
being. On the main floor of the building, she truly is the “mother hen” dependable, supportive, and
always ready to help. Kelley makes a point to ensure that people feel welcomed and valued, taking the
time to answer questions and show visitors around our facility. Rest assured if a new patron comes in
and they have a dog at home, Kelley will find out and they will connect over their love of dogs.

If there were an award for remembering birthdays, Kelley would win. She prides herself on

remembering small details that make a big difference in workplace morale. We are incredibly grateful to
have Kelley as part of our building, and her presence and attitude have a consistently positive impacton
both our team, community and patrons. Thank you Kelley!

POBox 207 | 361559 St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



e
lley)) p1eoq ‘semoH 19849l 1019811 SAIIN2XT ‘YIS unsnf

920z ‘Aenuigad jo Aep U161 SiYyl papiemy

*aA19S 9M AIUNWIWOD 8y} puke wes)
1IN0 Y1oq uo 10eduwi gunse) e upjew 10} pue 8101 INOA uj puoAsq pue anoge Sulo3 10} noAueyl

‘uoneziuegio Ino jo sanjea syl Apoquia QHON 40 Ss320NS 34}
| _ 01 SUOIINCLIILOD puE ‘SaNges)j00 INOoA Jo uoddns JU91SISUOD ‘@0Ud]199X3 01 JUBWIWILIOD INOA
| -apnHIIe 9AnIsod pue ‘uonedipap SulleABMUN ‘gouewliopad jeuondaoxs INoA Jo uoniudodal U

o001 HUM-UIHLD Aond))

0} pajuasald Ajpnolid s 81801190 SIYL

920¢c AMeniqgad
Uluo| ay1 Jo 9skoidw3




(B North County
(?:F[\\( ;-‘:_h :;j—' S’ . ° °
LT N 5y Recreation District

North County Recreation District
Board Meeting
January 17,2026 5:30 pm
Fireside Room and Via Zoom

Call to order by Chairman, Michael Howes at 5:30 pm.

Attendance: Michael Howes, Doug Sparks, Frankie Knight Ill, Mary Gallagher, Erin Laskey-Wilson.

Recorder: Jennie Meyers
Staff: Justin Smith, Marcus Runkle, Kiley Konruff, Angie Terry, James Massa, Megan Neahring, Tim

Schaeffer.
Friends of NCRD: Linda Makohon.

Pledge of Allegiance

Declaration of Potential Conflict of Interest: None
Public Comment: None

Correspondence: None

Employee Recognition: Megan Neahring is honored this month at Employee of the Month. She is noted
to be a team player, stepping in wherever needed. She stays late and keeps the area clean and organized.
The kids that she deals with on a daily basis in the Youth Department look up to her as she represents a
positive attitude in all her activities. Congratulations to Megan!!

Consent Agenda: The Minutes of the December Board Meeting and the December Executive Director’s
Report were approved by motion from Doug with second from Frankie.
The motion passed unanimously. Erin Laskey-Wilson was late arriving so did not vote on this motion.
Howes - Yes
Sparks - Yes
Gallagher - Yes
Knight - Yes

Financial Report:

e Marcus reported that the auditor has completed the 24/25 Audit and has clarified capitalization of
funds expended for the New Pool. @

POBox207 | 36155 9% St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



’: E e
N

e//;;\; North County

-
] —

P - (&N
N -
< S

S

o5 Recreation District

Doug asked if the low membership could be addressed. Yes, the Department heads have met with
the Executive Director and Finance Manager to discuss the issue.

Michael pointed out the issue of propane expenses for the New Pool. Marcus noted that he and
Justin have solicited assistance from several sources including our architect, Carl Sherwood, in
order to understand the expense and if there is anything to do to mitigate the charges. A new “bulk
price” has been negotiated by Kerry Brown and investigation into some possible billing errors is
ongoing. Itis the intent to shop other propane companies and to keep the focus on the issue until
resolved.

Doug asked about check signing and if an outside source could be used for payroll. Approximately
1/3 of the employees still request paper checks. Marcus noted that accounting software other
than Quick Books is being investigated.

Mary noted that the Equity portion of the financials doesn’t appear to be correct. The auditor will
advise how to make the correction. It was also noted that some of the pool costs have not been
capitalized.

Marcus noted that the auditor will attend the next Board Meeting to discuss the 24/25 audit.

There was a motion to accept the Finance Report as presented made by Mary, second by Frankie.
The motion passed unanimously.

Howes - Yes

Sparks - Yes
Gallagher - Yes
Knight - Yes
Laskey-Wilson - Yes

Committee Reports.

The communications committee has met and reviewed guidelines. The report will be presented at

the next Board Meeting

NEW BUISNESS:

Friends of NCRD Foundation Report:

Marcus reported that one of the current Board Members, Kaleen Wineinger, has resigned from the

Board for personal reasons. He has reported that three new members are being brought forward for
approval of this Board as represented by Resolution 2026-01.

The names are as follows:
Wendy Bakker @

PO Box 207 | 361559 St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



G RCO U
e N North County

NS Recreation District

Linda Makohon

Carol Mills
The Resolution was read. A motion to approve the Resolution was made by Frankie, second by Erin.
The motion passed unanimously.

Howes - Yes

Sparks - Yes

Gallagher-Yes

Knight - Yes

Laskey-Wilson - Yes

Loan Repayment:
Resolution 2026-02 Authorization of FF&C Loan Principal Repayment

The Resolution that authorizes the principal repayment of $1,000,000 to Zion Bank toward the FF&C
obligation was read by Chairman Howes. The Finance/Operations Director is authorized to execute all
necessary documents and take all actions required to complete the repayment in accordance with the
loan agreement.

There was as motion by Mary, second by Doug to approve Resolution 2026-2.
The motion passed unanimously.

Howes - Yes

Sparks - Yes

Gallagher-Yes

Knight - Yes

Laskey-Wilson - Yes

Executive Director Report:
Reports of statistics from all of the Departments were given.

Upcoming events:
e Design Team will have a report at the February Meeting

e Time off advice
e Insurance Benefits Program is in full swing Those who sign up with be a test group for fobs usage

e Dave Hall has been hired as Pool Maintenance
e Closed for MLK Day on January 19, 2026
e Next Board Meeting February 19, 2026 5:30 @

POBox 207 | 361559"St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273




———
iR €Oy,

() North County
o e/ . o ae
Recreation District

Board Comments:

Doug: Insurance Benefits Program — Well Done!!

Frankie: The Holiday Party with Families was a great success, especially the kid-friendly movie in
the PAC. More use of the building for the community is encouraged. He appreciates the management’s

ability to make real time decisions and able to “pivot on a dime™.
Erin: Refreshing to hear about all the good directions at NCRD. Thanks to Marcus for great

financial reports that are easy to understand.
Mary: So thankful for the Insurance Benefits Program and the effort to getitin place.
Michael: We are on the edge of great things!!

The next meeting is scheduled for February 19, 2026 at 5:30.

The meeting was adjourned at 6:22 pm.

Respectfully submitted

Jennie Meyers, Recorder

©

PO Box207 | 361559 St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



NORTH CQUNTY. .
Recreation District

January 2026 Executive Director Report

Correspondence

None

Employee Recognition

Meghan Neahring - Youth Attendant

Sportsman

Data review

Department Reports

Fitness

Christmas Youth Gift Bag for Nehalem Bay Methodist Church: Fitness Department came together and
fulfilled one youth ticket wish list, which included: Clothes, Headphones, Music Items, and Gift Card.
Pop Goes the Heart Prep is in Full Swing: Saturday Volunteers at Little Apple are happening, banners
around facility have been set up, and baskets in welcome center are on display.

New Yoga Blocks for Spin Fusion have been added to classroom.

10am Fitness Classes, Stretch and Balance and Functional Fitness for Seniors have both moved from
10am to 10:15am starting time to allow easier clean-up and transition between classes.

We had an increase of 50 visits vs December 2024

We have 665 more total visits to the fitness center this year when compared to last year.

Youth/Sports

Number of Youth programs participants was 48 in after-school and 13 in futsal.
Open 19 days this month averaging 17 kids a day.
We had 6 no school days in December.

Futsal concluded on December 19.
Basketball began in January 12.

Aquatics

We have started a new fitness program! On Tuesday and Thursday evenings we will be having our Deep-
Water Agua Aerobics class, taught by our very own Misty Hadermann!

We have started a new partnership with Hope Inspired Private School! Their students will now be joining
our Swim Safe Program.
We ran with reduced operation for the 2 weeks of December and added in extra open swims while school

was out. We had a record 94 on Christmas eve.
We had 1756 visits in December, an increase from 946 in December of 2024. That’s an increase of 60%!

Our 3 new lifeguards are finishing onboarding. @



NORTH COUNTY

District

Adult Activities

e The weather, power outages and holidays contribute to a slow month for NCRD Adult Activities. The
figures show that people came for these on only two weeks of the month. We had about a 50% drop In
users.

e Although one artist figured out that we have a generator and heat, so she came and painted with Jane that
Wednesday morning. All through the afternoon | hosted various people in the Fireside Room who had come
in to get warm, have something hot to drink and charge electronics.

e Scone Friday is split now between the pool and the Fireside Room. Odd months are in the Fireside Room,
even months at the pool lobby.

e January will start Great Decisions, the American Foreign Policy Discussion Group. This runs for 8 weeks,
using a briefing book prepared by the Foreign Policy Association. All are welcome to attend. The briefing
books are for sale in the Welcome Center.

Performing Arts Center

Events:

¢ Nov. 15" the Nehalem Valley Historical Society talked about recent finds along the Nehalem Bay

of the 1694 beeswax shipwreck.
e Riverbend has been in the PAC with their performance of The Holiday Channel Christmas Movie

Wonderthon. They conclude December 21.

Executive Director
e | have been working with the design team to finalize the signs and concepts. Their final design report will be

presented soon.
e |took some time off this month only working Monday and Tuesday the week of Christmas and New Years.

e We had our staff holiday party, about 60 attended, we had pasta for dinner and finished the night off with a
movie in the PAC.

e Thedistrict was closed 12/25, 12/26 and 1/1.

e We are now accepting insurance benefit memberships. We have gotten over 30 so far!

Hiring Update:

e The aquatics director’s role was closed, and we will be conducting interview on 1/30/26.
e |send an offer to Dave Hall for the aquatic’s maintenance position.
e Reviewing the PAC coordinator role. Kiley is helping cover rentals and performances.

Upcoming events:

e NVHS is presenting Seaside Riots on Saturday @ 3:30pm
e Riverbend will be in the facility at the end of the month to begin building their set.



North County
Recreation District

REVENUE & EXPENSE NARRATIVE THROUGH January 31, 2026 (58.33% OF FISCAL YEAR COMPLETED)

This financial narrative summarizes the District’s year-to-date (YTD) revenues and expenditures as
compared to the adopted annual budget. As of January 31, 2026, 58.33% of the fiscal year has been
completed. Under a linear spending model, revenues and expenditures would be expected to
approximate 58.33% of the annual budget. Variances above or below this benchmark primarily reflect
the District’s seasonal revenue cycle, property tax distribution timing, staffing patterns, and capital-
related expenditures.

REVENUE ANALYSIS

Total revenues throdgh January 31, 2026 are $2,286,373.93, representing 68.22% of the adopted annual
revenue budget of $3,351,697.00. Revenue performance remains ahead of the 58.33% benchmark. This
favorable variance continues to reflect the District’s property tax collection cycle, where the majority of
tax revenues are received during the November and December distribution periods.

Key observations include:

e Non-Allocated Revenues (Property Taxes) continue to perform strongly and remain the primary
driver of overall revenue performance.

e Administration revenues remain ahead of budget at 116.23%, reflecting timing and classification
differences that are not indicative of structural over-collection.

e Aquatics revenues are performing at 72.14%, exceeding the benchmark and reflecting strong
program participation and sustained community demand. Increase in operating hours, offerings,
and rentals are a directly tied to this increase in revenue.

e Adult Activities (49.21%), Youth Programs (38.30%), Fitness (44.33%), and Performing Arts
Center (7.90%) remain below benchmark primarily due to seasonal programming patterns and
event timing.

e Capital Asset Reserve Fund (CARF) revenues are at 44.33%, consistent with scheduled transfers.

e Aquatic Center Project Fund (ACPF) revenues remain limited, as construction-related funding
activity has largely concluded.

Overall, revenue trends remain stable and consistent with expected seasonal patterns. No adverse
revenue concerns are identified at this time.

EXPENSE ANALYSIS

Total expenditures through January 31, 2026 are $1,753,637.25, representing 70.27% of the annual
expense budget of $2,495,426.00. This places total expenditures approximately 12 percentage points
above the linear benchmark of 58.33%. The variance is largely attributable to project-related
expenditures and front-loaded operational costs.

POBox207 | 361559% St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

Departmental Highlights

Administration expenses total 76.02% of budget. Personnel, payroll taxes, and benefit costs
remain the primary drivers and are consistent with year-round staffing obligations. The increase
in expenses is due to higher then anticipated Property and Casualty Insurance, staff overtime,
and staff covering other areas (PAC).

Aquatics expenses total 71.33% of budget. Staffing and PR taxes remain elevated due to
operational demands and winter programming. Materials and services reflect continued
operational supply usage.

Adult Activities expenses remain favorable at 26.67% of budget, indicating conservative
spending and seasonal timing differences.

Fitness expenses are at 55.77%, closely aligned with benchmark expectations.

Performing Arts Center expenses are at 28.41%, reflecting event-based scheduling and lower
winter activity levels.

Youth Programs expenses total 66.27%, moderately above benchmark due to school-year
staffing and benefit obligations concentrated in the first half of the fiscal year.

Capital Asset Reserve Fund - No expenditures have occurred to date (0.00%), consistent with
reserve planning and capital scheduling.

Aquatic Center Project Fund expenses total 132.11% of budget. This variance reflects final
project-related closeout costs, material purchases, and project timing adjustments associated
with the Aquatic Center. These costs are capital in nature and do not represent ongoing
operational averspending.

FINANCIAL POSITION & STEWARDSHIP

At 58.33% of the fiscal year completed:

Revenues are performing ahead of benchmark (68.22%).

Expenses are elevated (70.27%) primarily due to capital and staffing timing factors.
Operational departments remain within reasonable control thresholds.

Reserve funds remain intact.

No structural budget imbalance is identified.

The variance in ACPF expenditures continues to reflect project closeout timing rather than operational
stress. Continued monitoring of Aquatics materials and Administration personnel costs will ensure
alignment with year-end expectations.

Overall, the District remains financially stable and well-positioned to meet operational commitments,
sustain program delivery, and manage capital obligations through the remainder of the fiscal year.

POBox207 | 361559 St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



North County Recreation District
Revenue and Expense Report

AA=Adult Activities AD=Administration AQ=Aquatics FIT=Fitness PAC=Performing Arts Center
YP=Youth Programs CARF=Capital Asset Reserve Fund ACPF=Aguatic Center Project Fund

Current percentage of the fiscal year: [ 58.33% I :

Through January 31, 2026 FY-to-Date Annual Budget Remaining % Used
REVENUES--
Activities $ - % 7,492.00 $ 7,492.00 0.00%
Aquatics $ 81,676.18 $ 113,219.00 $ 31,542.82 72.14%
Administration $ 369,805.92 $ 318,174.00 $ (51,631.92) 116.23%
Fitness $ 78,664.00 $ 159,843.00 $ 81,179.00 49.21%
Performing Arts Center $ 22,652.00 $ 87,950.00 $ 65,298.00 25.76%
Youth Programs $ 43,147.37 $ 112,671.00 $ 69,523.63 38.30%
Non-Allocated $ 1,465,554,01 $ 1,710,979.00 $ 245,424.99 85.66%
Capital Asset Reserve Fund $ 192,739.45 $ 434,769.00 $ 242,029.55 44.33%
Aquatic Center Project Fund $ 32,135.00 $ 406,600.00 $ 374,465.00 7.90%
Total Revenues $ 2,286,373.93 $ 3,351,697.00 $ 1,065,323.07 68.22%
EXPENSES--
AA Staffing $ 4,896.21 $ 16,480.00 $ 11,583.79 29.71%
AA PR Taxes and Benefits $ 40159 $ 1,280.00 $ 878.41 31.37%
AA Materials, Supplies, and Services $ 505.22 $ 4,000.00 $ 3,494.78 12.63%
Sub-total AA Expenses  $ 5,803.02 $ 21,760.00 $ 15,956.98 26.67%
AQ Staffing $ 170,578.43 $ 264,957.00 $ 94,378.57 64.38%
AQ PR Taxes and Benefits $ 55,763.47 $ 127,338.00 $ 71,574.53 43.79%
AQ Materials, Supplies, and Services $ 107,440.16 $ 75,657.00 $ (31,783.16) 142.01%
Sub-total AQ Expenses  $ 333,782.06 $ 467,952.00 $ 134,169.94 71.33%
AD Staffing $ 281,622.46 $ 437,216.00 $ 155,593.54 64.41%
AD PR Taxes and Benefits $ 94,848.02 $ 100,718.00 $ 5,869.98 94.17%
AD Materials, Supplies, and Services $ 197,984.51 $ 217,700.00 $ 19,715.49 90.94%
Sub-total AD Expenses  $ 574,454.99 $ 755,634.00 $ 181,179.01 76.02%
FIT Staffing $ 118,597.57 $ 211,652.00 $ 93,054.43 56.03%
FIT PR Taxes and Benefits $ 22,867.05 $ 31,341.00 $ 8,473.95 72.96%
FIT Materials, Supplies, and Services $ 8,448.54 $ 25,835.00 $ 17,386.46 32.70%
Sub-total FIT Expenses  $ 149,913.16 $ 268,828.00 $ 118,914.84 55.77%
PAC Staffing $ 9,871.43 $ 38,135.00 $ 28,263.57 25.89%
PAC PR Taxes and Benefits $ 790.85 $ 2,962.00 $ 2,171.15 26.70%
PAC Materials, Supplies, and Services $ 28,083.28 $ 95,299.00 $ 67,215.72 29.47%
Sub-total PAC Expenses  $ 38,745.56 $ 136,396.00 $ 97,650.44 28.41%
YP Staffing $ 75,062.15 $ 110,385.00 $ 35,322.85 68.00%
YP PR Taxes and Benefits $ 18,490.42 $ 23,215.00 $ 4,724.58 79.65%
YP Materials, Supplies, and Services $ 20,207.89 $ 38,056.00 $ 17,848.11 53.10%
Sub-total YP Expenses  $ 113,760.46 $ 171,656.00 $ 57,895.54 66.27%
CARF Materials, Supplies, and Services $ - $ 266,600.00 $ 266,600.00 0.00%
Sub-total CARF Expenses  $ - $ 266,600.00 $ 266,600.00 0.00%
ACPF Materials, Supplies, and Services $ 537,178.00 $ 406,600.00 $  (130,578.00) 132.11%
Sub-total ACPF Expenses  $ 537,178.00 $ 406,600.00 $ (130,578.00)
Total Expenses $ 1,753,637.25 $ 2,495,426.00 $ 741,788.75 70.27%

Green Favorable

Yellow Concerned
EEN unfavorable



Accrual Basis

North County Recreation District
Budget vs. Actual, General Fund, FY 2024 - 2025

Transactions through Jan 31, 2026 - 58.33% of hudget year

Ordinary Income/Expense
income
Friends of NCRD - Other
INCOME
Beginning Fund Balance
NWC - Restricted

Donations
Scholarships

Total NWC - Restricted
NWC - Unrestricted
Total Beginning Fund Balance

User Fees and Charges
Activities Fees
Trip Fees & Transport - General

Total Activities Fees

Aquatics User Fees

Fitness User Fees
Fitness Personal Training
Fitness User Fees - Other

Total Fitness User Fees

Youth Program
Youth Sports
Youth Camps

Pre-School Swim Fees
User Fees and Charges - Other

Total User Fees and Charges

Ticket Sales
Riverbend Players
Fundraising Income
Unrestricted
Event Fundraising- Participants
Event Fundraising - Sponsors

Total Unrestricted
Total Fundraising Income

Grants and Scholarships
Restricted
Grants
Scholarships
School Swim Program NKN #56

Total Restricted
Grants and Scholarships - Other
Total Grants and Scholarships

Preschool Teacher Reimbursement
Dedicated Space Rental
Community Center Room Rentals
Preschoo! Rental
_Dedicated Space Rental - Other

Total Dedicated Space Rental
Event Sponsorship

TBCC Contract
Concessions Income
Donations

Interest
General Fund
Interest - Other

Total Interest

Taxes (previously levied)
Taxes (current year)
Misc Income

Total INCOME
Total Income

Gross Profit

Jul ‘24 - Jan 26

320.00

2,000.00
200.00

2,200.00
1,202,362.00
1,204,562.00

0.00
0.00
111,618.68

1,932.00
206,281.69

208,213.69

64,115.44
11,694.00
3,522.00

1,760.00
250.00

401,174.81

13,964.00
28,089.67

8,800.60
4,106.00

12,906.60
12,906.60

259,758.77
17,012.80
11,067.00
287,838.57

0.00
287,838.57

64,143.67

19,483.50
4,625.00
900.00

25,008.50
2,984.28

9,680.24
605.00
27,302.75

209,750.12
12,840.45

222,590.57

49,144.38
2,877,257.71
16,108.89

5,243,681.64
5,243,681.64

5,243,361.64

Budget $ Over Budget
2,000.00 0.00
2,400.00 -2,200.00

4,400.00 -2,200.00
1,240,942.00 -38,580.00

1,245,342.00 -40,780.00
2,000.00 -2,000.00

2,000.00 -2,000.00

140,000.00 -28,380.32

8,000.00 -6,088.00
243,600.00 -37,318.31
251,600.00 -43,386.31
97,500.00 -33,384.56
18,700.00 -7,006.00
13,460.00 -9,938.00
4,800.00 -3,040.00
4,331.00 -4,081.00
532,391.00 -131,216.19
16,000.00 -2,036.00
32,000.00 -3,910.33
12,000.00 -3,188.40
10,000.00 -5,894.00
22,000.00 -9,093.40
22,000.00 -9,093.40
323,000.00 -63,241.23
34,735.00 -17,722.20
22,466.00 -11,399.00
380,201.00 -92,362.43
15,000.00 -15,000.00
395,201.00 -107,362.43
94,298.00 -30,154.33
26,200.00 -6,716.50
6,525.00 -1,900.00
32,725.00 -7.716.50
5,000.00 -2,015.72
21,250.00 -11,569.76
£,250.00 -4,645.00
32,900.00 -5,597.25
36,500.00 173,250.12
36,500.00 186,090.57
63,550.00 -14,405.62
2,435,069.00 442,188.71
9,000.00 7,108.89
4,978,476.00 264,885.64
4,978,476.00 265,205.64
4,978,476.00 265,205.64

% of Budgat

100.0%
8.3%

50.0%
96.9%
96.7%

0.0%
0.0%
79.7%

24.2%
84.7%

82.8%

65.8%
62.5%
26.2%

36.7%
5.8%

76.4%
89.7%

45.6%
11.5%
83.0%

574.7%

603.8%

77.3%
118.2%
179.0%

105.3%

105.3%

105.3%

age 1



North County Recreation District
Budget vs. Actual, General Fund, FY 2024 - 2025

Accrual Basis Transactions through Jan 31, 2026 - 58.33% of budget year
Jul '24 - Jan 26 Budget $ Over Budget % of Budget
Expense
DEBT SERVICE
FF&C Obligation Principal - Jun Q.00 180,000.00 -180,000.00 0.0%
FF&C Obligation Interest - June 0.00 560,700.00 -50,700.00 0.0%
FF&C Obligation Interest - Dec. 0.00 50,700.00 -50,700.00 0.0%
Total DEBT SERVICE 0.00 281,400.00 -281,400.00 0.0%
PERSONNEL SERVICES
ACTIVITIES

Activities Coordinator 21,477.45 37,670.00 -16,192.56 57.0%
Total ACTIVITIES 21,477 45 37,670.00 -16,192.55 57.0%
ADMINISTRATION

Maintenance |l 45,573.61 76,323.00 -29,749.39 61.0%

Admin specialist 52,449.93 53,560.00 -1,110.07 97.9%

Executive Director 171,750.38 188,000.00 -16,249.62 91.4%

Finance Manager 105,477.29 168,717.00 -53,239.71 66.5%

Welcome Center Staff 113,435.70 198,324.00 -84,888.30 57.2%

Pre-School Teacher 63,990.43 $92,341.00 -28,350.57 69.3%

Custedial Staff 24,717.89 63,202.00 -38,484.11 39.1%

Facility Operations Manager 34,054.38 48,204.00 -14,149.62 70.6%

Maintenance Supervisor 86,966.95 98,122.00 -11,155.05 88.6%

Maintenance and Gardening 17,332.61 22,495.00 -5,162.39 77.1%
Total ADMINISTRATION 716,749.17 999,288.00 -282,538.83 71.7%
AQUATICS

Aquatics Director/Ast. Ex. Dir. 115,132.66 140,669.00 -25,536.34 81.8%

Swim Program Manager 45,568.96 86,222.00 -40,653.04 52,9%

Aquatics Instructors 64,654.37 153,614.00 -88,959.63 421%

Aquatics Maintenance 17,313.00 35,242.00 -17,929.00 49.1%

Lifeguards 126,162.72 246,619.00 -120,456.28 51.2%
Total AQUATICS 368,831.71 662,366.00 -293,534.29 55.7%
FITNESS

Personal Trainer 1,947.83 8,570.00 -6,622.17 22.7%

Fitness Director 86,708.19 115,255.00 -28,546.81 75.2%

Fitness Supervisor 29,572.23 51,709.00 -22,136.77 57.2%

Fitness Attendant 115,862.58 139,186.00 -23,323.42 83.2%

Fitness Instructor 65,133.40 94,213.00 -29,079.60 89.1%
Total FITNESS 299,224.23 408,933.00 -109,708.77 73.2%
PERFORMING ARTS CENTER

PAC Coordinator 37,709.52 57,857.00 -20,247.48 65.1%

PAC Assistants 2,365.88 16,058.00 -13,692.12 14.7%
Total PERFORMING ARTS CENTER 40,075.40 74,015.00 -33,939.60 54.1%
YOUTH

Youth Program Director 88,893.79 114,907.00 -26,013.21 77.4%

Youth Program Assistants 87,927.69 104,761.00 -16,833.31 83.9%

Youth Sports Coordinator 1,409.57 4,249.00 -2,838.43 33.2%

Youth Sports Assistants 0.00 4,285.00 -4,285.00 0.0%
Total YOUTH 178,231.05 228,202.00 -49,970.95 78.1%
Overtime 253.13
6560 - Payroll Expenses 177,661.29 192,710.00 -15,048.71 92.2%
Health Insurance 115,813.27 204,418.00 -88,604.73 56.7%
Workers' Comp. Insurance 9,264.09 10,5656.00 -1,291.91 87.8%
Reti , NCRD C n 32,483.07 59,909.00 -27,425.93 54.2%

Total PERSONNEL SERVICES 1,960,063.86 2,878,067.00 -918,003.14 68.1%
MATERIALS & SERVICES
Misc. 12,408.73 12,500.00 -81.27 99.3%
Grants 24,163.52 98,000.00 -73,836.48 24.7%
Fitness Event Fundraising 3,451.67 22,000.00 -18,5648.33 16.7%
Misc. Supplies 520.08 1,550.00 -1,029.92 33.6%
Minor Equipment 223.95 3,000.00 -2,776.05 7.5%
Donations 5,315.00 25,650.00 -20,335.00 20.7%
Equipment Maintenance 2,719.22 1,650.00 1,069.22 164.8%
Maintenance Equipment/Repairs 10,669.58 11,000.00 -330.42 97.0%
Maintenance Materials/Supplies 13,253.75 4,500.00 8,753.75 294.5%
Main Bldg. - Groundskeep/Maint 35,798.67 45,500.00 -9,701.33 78.7%
Janitorial Supplies 7,227.68 9,000.00 -1,772.32 80.3%
Champ Fld. - Groundskeep/Maint 2,231.34 6,500.00 -4,268.66 34.3%
Inspections & Licenses 10,311.49 7,910.00 2,401.48 130.4%
Concessions Expenses 0.00 4,500.00 -4,500.00 0.0%
Artist Fees 39,991.99 42,000.00 -2,008.01 95.2%
Equipment 8,096.20 22,300.00 -14,203.80 36.3%
Office/Program Equipment 17,667.75 19,500.00 -1,832.26 90.6%
Pool Chemicals 14,733.87 29,000.00 -14,266.13 50.8%
Pool Materials 17,164.17 26,000.00 -8,836.83 66.0%

Page 2



North County Recreation District
Budget vs. Actual, General Fund, FY 2024 - 2025

Accrual Basis

Transactions through Jan 31, 2026 - 58.33% of budget year

Budget $ Over Budget
27,500.00 13,144.71
4,000.00 355.77
4,500.00 -202.17
8,000.00 -5,905.95
4,850.00 -1,235.67
45,850.00 6,156.69
14,000.00 -5,663.71
6,500.00 -2,479.39
28,000.00 -20,030.18
2,600.00 -2,600.00
38,000.00 -534.00
38,800.00 33,253.00
77,800.00 32,719.00
85,000.00 9,660.64
28,1580.00 -15,421.12
2,250.00 -1,887.88
10,800.00 -467.73
46,284.00 -5,376.26
5,844.00 -586.56
50,000.00 -1,174.34
5,516.00 -548.00
48,056.00 -7,908.87
18,265.00 6,279.88
23,500.00 47,342.33
197,465.00 37,928.18
890,575.00 -128,196.84
40,000.00 -40,000.00
20,000.00 -20,000.00
60,000.00 -60,000.00
4,110,042.00 -1,387,599.98
868,434.00 1,652,805.62
868,434.00 1,659,190.50

% of Budget

147.8%
108.9%
86.5%
26.2%
74.5%

113.4%

59.5%
61.9%
28.5%

0.0%

98.6%
183.3%

142.0%
111.4%

45.2%
16.1%
95.7%

88.4%
88.3%
97.7%
80.1%
83.5%
134.4%
301.5%

118.2%
85.6%

G.0%

0.0%
0.0%
66.2%
290.3%

291.1%

Jul 24 - Jan 26
Supplies
Office/Program Supplies 40,644.71
Classroom Supplies 4,355.77
Printing & Supplies 1,297.83
Sports Supplies 2,094.05
Supplies - Other 3614.33
Total Supplies 52,006.68
Advertising 8,336.29
Ads/Pri R/Promo 4,020.61
Camps and Workshops 7,969.82
Activity/Event Fees 0.00
Property and Casualty Insurance
Property and Casualty Insurance 37,466.00
Property and Gasuaity Insurance - Other 73,153.00
Total Property and Casualty Insurance 110,619.00
Professional Services 94,660.64
Training/Certifications 12,728.88
Transportation/Lodging/Mileage 362.12
Bank Charges 10,332.27
Utilities
Electricity 40,907.74
Garbage 5,157.44
Qil 48,825.66
Sewer 4,968.00
Internet/Phone 40,147.13
Water 24,544.88
Propane 70,842.33
Total Utilities 235,393.18
Total MATERIALS & SERVICES 762,378.16
CONTINGENCIES
General Operating Contingency 0.00
CONTINGENCIES - Other 0.00
Total CONTINGENCIES 0.00
Total Expense 2,722,442.02
Net Ordinary Income 2,521,239.62
Other Income/Expense
Other Income
Refunds 6,384.88
Total Other income 6,384.88
Net Other Income 6,384.88
Net Income 2,527,624.50

Page 3



North County Recreation District
Balance Sheet w/ Prev Month Comparison

Accrual Basis

As of January 31, 2026

ASSETS
Current Assets
Checking/Savings

1st Security Bank - CKNG

1st Security Bank- DEBIT

LGIP

LGIP_NEW_POOL
FF&C Obligation Proceeds (LGIP)
LGIP_NEW_POOL - Other

Total LGIP_NEW_POOL
Petty Cash
Total Checking/Savings

Accounts Receivable
1200 - Accounts Receivable

Total Accounts Receivable
Total Current Assets

Fixed Assets
Fixed Assets
Accumulated Depreciation

Total Fixed Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & EQUITY
Liabilities
Current Liabilities
Accounts Payable
2000 - Accounts Payable

Total Accounts Payable

Other Current Liabilities

Accrued Vacation Pay

2100 - Payroll Liabilities
Med Company
Med Employee
OR Unemp
OR WBF
OR Withholding
Retirement, NCRD Contribution
SS Company
SS Employee
Withholding
2100 - Payroll Liabilities - Other

Total 2100 - Payroll Liabilities
Total Other Current Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Long Term Liabilities
FF&C Obligations Payable 2025
Premium on FF&C Obligations
GO Bonds Payable 2021
Premium on Bonds Payable
FF&C Obligations Payable 2021

Total Long Term Liabilities
Total Liabilities

Jan 31, 26 Dec 31, 25 % Change
123,331.24 204,004.39 -39.5%
2,965.92 3,704.80 -19.9%
3,583,365.23 3,633,923.07 -1.4%
11,383.31 11,383.31 0.0%
-11,383.28 -11,383.28 0.0%
0.03 0.03 0.0%
o ) 3596_2_ B 350.62 B 0.0%
3,710,013.04 3,841,982.91 -3.4%
18,286.00 750.00 2,338.1%
B 18,286.00 750.00 - 2,338.1%
3,728,299.04 3,842,732.91 -3.0%
4,291,151.55 4,291,151.55 0.0%
-1,251,840.00 -1,251,840.00 o 0.0%
3,039,311.55 7 3,039,311.55 - 0.0%
6,767,610.59 6,882,044.46 1.7%
20,499.30 25679.81 ) -20.2%
20,499.30 25,679.81 -20.2%
22,079.87 22,079.87 0.0%
560.86 -53.57 1,147.0%
560.86 -53.57 1,147.0%
-167.68 -287.99 41.8%

164.90 60.08 174.5%
2,606.00 -214.00 1,317.8%
7,499.58 6,530.32 14.8%
2,396.01 -231.26 1,136.1%
2,396.01 -231.26 1,136.1%
2,056.00 -110.00 1,969.1%

23,5632.16 21,176.97 11.1%
41,604.70 26,585.72 ) SGE%
63,684.57 48,665.59 30.9%
84,183.87 74,345.40 13.2%

1,940,500.00 1,940,500.00 0.0%
270,202.80 270,202.80 0.0%
4,295,000.00 4,295,000.00 0.0%
540,107.70 540,107.70 0.0%
3,145,000.00 3,145,000.00 0.0%

B 10,190,810‘.50 10,139,810.50 0.0%
10,274,994.37 10,265,155.90 0.1%



North County Recreation District
Balance Sheet w/ Prev Month Comparison

Accrual Basis As of January 31, 2026
Jan 31, 26 Dec 31, 25 % Change

Equity
Temporary Fund Balance Forward -27,530,777.00 -27,530,777.00 0.0%
Capital Improvement-Assigned 2,161,140.55 2,161,140.55 0.0%
Capital Improvement-Restricted 5,235.00 5,235.00 0.0%
3000 - Capital Improvement-Unassigned 2.70 2.70 0.0%
General Fund-Nonspendable 224.00 224.00 0.0%
General Fund-Unassigned 91,5690.60 91,580.50 0.0%
3900 - Retained Earnings 21,226,736.56 21,226,736.56 0.0%
Net Income 7 538,463.91 662,736.25 -18.8%
Total Equity -3,607,383.78 -3,383,111.44 -3.7%
TOTAL LIABILITIES & EQUITY 6,767,610.59 6,882,044.46 1.7%

\6



| 9bed

€7'L9¢- slgeded sjunoody - 000 - yued Alnoag is
e’ L9¢- OSINN TUed SjUN00dY - 0002
G691~ a|qeAed sjunoody - Q00T - djueg Ajnoss is|
90°Le- a|qeded sjunoddy - pOOZ - queg ApInoag Is|
00°LLL- alqefed sjunoody - 000Z - jueg Ajunoss ISt
00°LLL- S80IAI9S |BUDISS8J0ld  TBd SIUN0OOY - 0002
00°0EP- dlqeded Slunoddy - 000Z T - yuEg ANNdag Is|
8p'ee- s|qeAed Sjunoady - 000z - Yueg Ajunodag s
LG 7ro- 8|qeded sjunoooy - DODZ T - Yueg Anoag S|
y¥'82e- -117dS-  'Bd SjUnoody - 00T
[leNole rdng/sieusieyy soueusluEy]  TBd SUNO2AY - 0002
F9'€Co- sjqefed sjunoody - 000 T - juegd Ajundes isy
90'69¢- juswdinby weiboiq/eoQ  Ued Sjunoody - 000Z
82'0€8- ajdeded sjunoody - 000Z T - yued AJInDag Is)
Z9'¥8€'01- alqeded syunosoy - 0ODZ T - ueg Ajinoeg Is|
00°'G62- 9lqeAed SNoddy - 000Z T - yueg Aundeg ISt
0€'6¥9- sefieypyueg " -dueg Aundsg sy
L2891 - s|geded sjunoddy - 000 - Mueg Aundsg ISt
L1189 - S80IDG jBUOISSSI0ld  "'Bd SJUNDIDY - 000C
80'6¢1- a|qeded sjunoody - 0O0Z - Yueg Aunodeg s
06'96L~ safliqer] jjosfed - 0oLz T - Muegd Ajunosg is}
29°GEL- sanqert jjloiked - 00tz - ueg Ajundeg is|
P LEY'8- -1Nds- T -ueg Awnosg is|
00°0€|- -1I7dS-  "ed SWnoddy - 0002
00°0€}- ajqefed sjunoody - 000Z ' - duegd AJunoag Is|
GO6v.L'e- leNomaNs Bulpiing 239 ""Bd SIUN0JJY - 000C
09'v&- ajqefed sjunoddy - 000Z - yueg Aunoag is|
91'09L1- -lids- - ojueg Aunosg is|
unowy mds JUNO22Y

juswasinquiey selddng
wswiasinquiay salddng

sebieyn gzoz Jequisidag
safieys a1015-uj

QZCy L# SO10AU|
022y 1# 9dl0AU|

{20z 19qwiadaq) sejes As|leD

sa|ddng J8juag snenby - JuswWasINqUIIDY

805} # 15N BuLOyUOW wWiely Si14

£120€ :Ql 199Y
pLEPPRL TON Jawolsny
8EPYSYEY #1100V

$G61 TON S3l0AUL

|BIDOS BAILDLY
|BID0S SAIYDIY

10°9€S

LOZOYS9L1# 100V
1020¥S9L 1 # 100V

sal|ddng yjnoA

OWBA

Sevie

“'EplIoH

60rLie
80v.2

L0vie
0cerl

a0¥LC
S0¥Lc

povic
14T4%¢]

"0 10H

€ovLe

covie
Lovic
ooviz

HOV

66€.2
08909¢

86¢€.¢
G6€L2

y6eLl
HOV

L6€LC

96£Le

yoe

wnn

9z0zT/EWI0 O wd 1iig

9z0Z/E1/10 g
apjuna sndJew

920Z/EL/L0 D lwd g
JaquinT ejuezZue|

9zoz/eL/La TD-lwd g
SP004 Ysaid ejiuezuep

9zOZ/EMLD  TO- W IIg

920Z/10/10 i
91

9z0Z/EL/10  O-wd lig
‘llews uaJey

9zOT/EL/L0 O wd i
yHwsg ugsnp

9z0Z/EL/L0 O wd g

9202/10/40 ig
0.4dIuo9]

9202/1€/10 a

9zOZ/EL/I0 O ud g
(HS) 9711 ‘suonels OISYH

9202/22/10

9zoz/eL/l0 O wd g
*09 JSni| ® jueg susziiy isiig

9z0Z/SI/LO .- ud g
sebjjeliey

9z0Z/EM10 O ud Ing
sS0Ipn}g pue|s) Jaag

9202/80/10 pe-lts)
to 3 i P TETLETEo

9zoZ/EL/L0  TO-lud g

9202/Z1/10 g
011 ‘sMdaIng

9ZOZ/CH/IL0 O~ ud g
"ejluezuely jo AID

9zOZ/ELILD  TUuD Alngen

9zOZ/EML0  "yD Algen

9202/90/10 L]
sl 81D

9202/22/10 g

9zoZ/CLLD O wd g
suonieduNWWOo) Jaueyd

920Z/4Z/10 Ing
subisaq ajuiod 19)uan

9z0Z/EH/10 O ud Iid
Aa] a1buy

9z02/91/10 pallle]
uozeuwy

aeq adfl

9Z0zZ Atenuer

Jopuap Aq }si] uonoesued]
Jo13SI] Uonealssy AQunod YUON

{1



Z 9bed

90'1L

005l es-
00°€5L es-

LEZyo'e-

V19
E£V'19-

yo'e6l-
o e6l-

A4V A

00°228'C}-
00°225°C)-

8165~

00°0G¢-
00°'08¢-

00°050°L-
00°0S0°}-

60°01E}-

00°€08'z
00'¥9¥'z-

00°009-

G8'9¢)-
GEPYLL-

LL'900°L-

00°0cL-
00°0¢L-

JARA o
LY’ 2ev-

00°690'2-
005902

unouwry

aLooU] 2SIy

8|qehed SjUNoodY - DOOZ
-11ds-

s|qeded SIUNCIVY - 000OZ

a|qeAed Sjunosdy - 000Z
Jawdinbg weiboid/eoW0

8|qeded sjunoody - 0002
-1nds-

sjqefed SJUN0ddY - 000

a|qeked SjUN0odY - 0002
¥ yomaNs Buipiing 294

s|qeAed sjunoady - 0002

a|qeked SUNoIY - 000Z
$90IAIBS |EUOISS)0Id

s|gefed SUNo29Y - 000Z
SOOINSS |BUOISSSJ0Id

$asuaol B suoioadsul

Buiployuyim HO
Buiployyim 4O

sosua9| 9 suonsadsu)

s|eawayo jood
s|esiway) j100d

s|qehed sjuno%0y - 0002

s|qeled syunoddy - 000Z
-111ds-

s|qefed sjunoody - 0002
-11ds-

s|qeded sjunoody - 000Z
S30IAISS |BUOISSI)0Id

- yueg Alnoag i)

“toyueq Alunoag 1St
"'Bd SWUNODJY - 0002

- ueg Aunoes is|

- ueg ANINoeg 1S
"Bd SJUN0d2Y - Q00T

- -yueg Aunoeg 15|
'Bd SIUNOOOY - 000Z

- yueg Ajunoag 1s),

- yueg AJInoag 1S
"Bd SjUNOJY - 0002

- yueg AJINosS IS |

< -yueg ANoag 181
""Bd SIUN022Y - 0002

= ueg ANinoasg is|
“'ed SWNo23Y - 0002

"Bd SjUNo2dY - 0002

t - yueg Apnoag 18|
-yueg ApInoag IS

""Bd SJUNOYOY - 000Z

- yueg Anoeg Is)
- yueg AJInoag 1s|

-t -oueg Alnoes Is)

- yueg Anoag Is|
"B SJUN02DY - 000C

- jueg AJunoag Is|
"Bd Sjunodoy - 0002

- yuegq AJUNoag s
"ed Sjunoddy - 0002

nds

JUNOJY

ysodaq

92621 “ON A3y
97621 'ON A3

$28 "ON @010AL|

se|qe) Jamelqg ysen
s3|qeD Jemelq ysen

9.0G2. 'ON 109v
9062/ 'ON 1o0v

G2669€080 I# 100V

yaloid dN QYON
8lo1d dN QUIN

£6§/0¢ J3WoIsn)

$202/0€/90 :puU3 JBIA 18-/ZL¥1LS0 NI
$202/0€/90 ‘puU3 JBaA 18-/ZL¥LS0 ‘NI9

(s1ees 1) diysisquisy YdYO 9202
(s1ees 01) diysisquisiy YdHO 9202

22760000390 :"ON J0pusp

8-L21¥1S0
8-221¥150

202
200

YOi- L OV

6z0z Was/Bny/ne:Bunig
gz0g ydag/Bny/nr:Bulig

9202/02/10 usodag
aienbg

cevle 920Z/ei/i0 O~ wd g

r4Y-154 9202/10/1.0 ng
S99IAIG aouRINSUj sJoLISI( |Bl1oads

LZvie 9cog/el/lo O wd g
*aU| ‘UOIIdNIISUON JOYW| OIS

oevie 920z/EL/L0 O~ wd g

692221 9z02/10/10 !

sasudiajug ojiy

6lvic 9zoz/eL/Ll To-d g

“Ziolo 920Z/10/10 g
wosaja] wajeysn |1M

8lvLe 920c/eL/l0 O~ lud g
uoBaiQ ulaysapp AGojosay

LIviT 9z0g/el/i0 TUO-lud g

L# Od 9Z0¢/L0/10 g
oU| ‘UOI)ONIISU0) Ysaj-led

alvie 9zoZ/eL/Ll0 O wd g
uonewoINy a3 o11oed

SivLe 9z0z/el/Ll0 D wd g

ST ArA VI g
aje)s Jo Aejaasag uobalQ

vivie 920¢/E1/L0  O-lwd lilg

"0000¢ 9z0¢/20/10 g
uUOIjeID0SSY UONE3IIBY R S)Jed uobaiQ

9202/4¢2/10 g
UOISSIWILWIOY SIIUY}T JUaWUIaA0L) uobalQ

(3204 9z0Z/4Z/10 D Aungen

£6€LC 920g/c/L0 TuD Aungery
anuaaady jo juawpedaqg uobaip

"M3N 92¢0¢/22/10 ng
fuoyiny yjeaq YO

HOVY 920z/.2/\0 384D

HOV 920¢/60/10 30849
Z0ONN

elrie 9zoz/ei/l0 O lwd g
*09) Jaqun wWajeyan

Zivie gzog/eV/l0 O-ld g

1010 9202/10/10 g

Aouaby Jajepp disean Aeg wajeyanN

wayshg auold LiviZ 920¢/EH/ 10 - wd g
wajsAg suoyd QLN 9202/10/10 g
jo1Asson
sjoway ssamueg 11 0lvie 920Z/eL/l0 TTO-wd g
Sjowsy savlMeg 1| "-dS 920¢/10/10 g
yoa] Assol
owa wnp aleq adf)

9z0z Aenuep

Jopuap Aq }si uonoesued |
JoU3SIg uUonealday AJunon YuoN



¢ abed

ZyLLs'e-
06°G9¢'L-

66'€99'c-
S6°Cl-

0T'8¥0'c-
0T'8+0'c-

-11ds-
-117ds-

-11ds-
a|qefed sjunoady - 0002

8|qeded sjunoosy - 000

“ JEN‘JIomays Buipling 281

junowy

nids

- yueg Aunoag s
= -yueg Aunoas 181

“*Bd SIUNODIY - 000Z
- jueg AUnoag 1Sy

- yueg Anoag js|
""Bd SjUno22Y - 000¢

85£50G60PL- # BunjoelL gD 8219281-16
8£016.250Z # Bunioel | gD 8Zyoz8l-16

8EPPS

19N 26'9ELr L1ETYBZOLSSZ0 webuQ Aseq

GGGE "ON S9l10AU|
GGGE 'ON 92l0AU|

Junoooy

owa

Aed-3
Aed-3

¥evie

£Thie
Aaqgng

wnN

9z0z/ZZ/L0  uD Awngen

9z02/EL/I0 U Auger
funseal) seje)g papun

920¢/L2/10 ng
and yoowejpy

920Z/EL/L0 O lwd g
Areagr funog yoowelit

9cog/eL/le O wd g

9202/80/10 19

Jood @Bnjay Buosg

ajeq adA]

9z0z Aenuep

JopusA Aq 1si1 uonoesued|
Jo1SIq uUoijealday AJunos YUoN



KOONTZ,BLASQUEZ

ASSOCIAYES, PC

=7
i

CERTIFIED PuUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

December 30, 2025

Board of Directors
North County Recreation District
Nehalem, Oregon 97131

We have audited the financial statements of North County Recreation District as of and for the year
ended June 30, 2025, and have issued our report thereon dated December 30, 2025. Professional

standards require that we advise you of the following matters relating to our audit.

Our Responsibllity In Relation to the Financial Statement Audit

As communicated in our engagement letter dated June 19, 2025, our responsibility, as described by
professional standards, is to form and express an opinion about whether the financial statements that
have been prepared by management with your oversight are presented fairly, in all material respects, in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our audit of
the financial statements does not relieve you or management of your respective responsibilities.

Our responsibility, as prescribed by professional standards, is to plan and perform our audit to obtain
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit of financial statements includes consideration of the system of internal control
over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, as part of our audit, we considered the system of
internal control of North County Recreation District solely for the purpose of determining our audit
procedures and not to provide any assurance concerning such internal control.

We are also responsible for communicating significant matters related to the audit that are, in our
professional judgment, relevant to your responsibllities in overseeing the financial reporting process.
However, we are not required to design procedures for the purpose of identifying other matters to

communicate to you.

We have provided our -findings regarding significant control deficiencies over financial reporting,
material noncompliance, and other matters noted during our audit in a separate letter to you dated

December 30, 2025.
Planned Scope and Timing of the Audit

We conducted our audit consistent with the planned scope and timing we previously communicated to

you.
Compliance with All Ethics Requirem ents Regarding Independence
The engagement team, others in our firm, as appropriate, and our firm have complied with all relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence.

920 Elm Street SW - P.O. Box 605 * Albany, Oregon 97321
(541) 926-5543 + (541) 967-9460 fax



Qualitative Aspects of the District's Significant Accounting Practices

Significant Accounting Policies

Management has the responsibility to select and use appropriate accounting policies. A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by North County Recreation District is included in Note | to the
financial statements. There have been no initial selection of accounting policies and no changes in
significant accounting policies or their application during the year ended June 30, 2025. No matters
have come to our attention that would require us, under professional standards, to inform you about (%))
the methods used to account for significant unusual transactions and (2) the effect of significant
accounting policies In controversial or emerging areas for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance

or consensus.
Significant Accounting Estimates and Related Disclosures

Accounting estimates and related disclosures are an integral part of the financial statements prepared
by management and are based on management's current judgments. Those judgments are normally
pased on knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future
events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the
financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ markedly

from management’s current judgments.

The most sensitive accounting estimates affecting the financial statements are management's
f capital assets, which are based on expected

estimates of depreciable lives and salvage values o
useful lives of the assets and current market conditions. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions

used to develop the depreciable lives and salvage values and determined that they are reascnable in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole and in relation to the applicable opinion

units.
Financial Statement Disclosures

Certain financial statement disclosures involve significant judgment and are particularly sensitive
because of their significance to financial statement users.

Significant Difficulties Encountered During the Audit
We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management relating to the performance of
the audit.

Uncorrected and Corrected Misstatements

For purposes of this communication, professional standards require us to accumulate all known and
likely misstatements identified during the audit, other than those that we believe are ftrivial, and
communicate them to the appropriate level of management. Management has corrected all identified

misstatements.

In addition, professional standards require us to communicate to you all material, corrected
misstatements that were brought to the attention of management as a result of our audit procedures.
The material misstatements that we identified as a result of our audit procedures are summarized in the
attached schedule and were brought to the attention of, and corrected by, management.

&



Disagreements with Management

is letter, professional standards define a disagreement with management as a
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, concerning a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter that could be significant to North County Recreation District's financial statements or the
auditor's report. No such disagreements arose during the course of the audit.

For purposes of th

Representations Requested from Management

We have requested certain written representations from management, which are included in the
attached letter dated December 30, 2025.

Management’s Consultations with Other Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and
accounting matters. Management informed us that, and to our knowledge, there were no consultations

with other accountants regarding auditing and accounting matters.

Other Significant Matters, Findings, or Issues

n with North County Recreation District, we generally

discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing standards,
significant events or transactions that occurred during the year, operating and regulatory conditions
affecting the District, and operational plans and strategies that may affect the risks of material
misstatement. None of the matters discussed resulted in a condition to our retention as the District’s

auditors.

In the normal course of our professional associatiol

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and management of
North County Recreation District and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other

tr\an these specified parties.

. }'. {ll 4 @ ol
».\j;—&?W L. A —
Debra L. Blasquez, CPA [/ /
Koontz, Blasquez & Associa‘és, P.C.



North County Recreation District
Proposed Audit Adjustments to be Recorded by Client

June 30, 2025

Description Assets Liabilities Revenues Expenses Equity
To remove non-modifled accrual items:

General Fund $(3,098,812) $ (22,080) $ 852,372 $ 57,802 $ 4,543,988

Capital Asset Reserve Fund - - - - -

Aquatic Center Project Fund 59,480 (10,190,810) 2,000,000 165,000 -
To balance funds:

General Fund (605,808} - - - -

Capital Asset Reserve Fund 315,661 - - - -

Aquatic Center Project Fund 290,147 - - - -
To record note receivable:

General Fund 5,000 - - (5,000) -
To accural 7/3 payroll

- 43,934 -

General Fund - 43,934

&



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
P.O. Box 207
Nehalem, Oregon 97131

Koontz, Blasquez & Associates, P.C.
P.O. Box 605
Albany, Oregon 97321

This representation letter is provided in connection with your audit of the governmental activities
and each major fund of North County Recreation District as of June 30, 2025 and for the year
then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, for the purpose of expressing
opinions on whether the basic financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position and results of operations of the various opinion units of North County
Recreation District in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United

States of America.

Certain representations in this letter are described as being limited to matters that are material.
items are considered material, regardiess of size, if they involve an omission or misstatement of
accounting information such that, in light of surrounding circumstances, there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

We confirm, to the best of our knowledge and belief, having made such inquiries as we
considered necessary for the purpose of appropriately informing ourselves as of the date of

signature of this letter:

Financial Statements

1. We have fulfilled our responsibilities, as set out in the terms of the audit engagement
letter dated June 19, 2025, for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements of the various opinion units referred to above in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

2. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
the system of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free.from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

3. We acknowledge our responsibility for the design, implementation, and maintenance of
internal control to prevent and detect fraud.

4. We acknowledge our responsibility for compliance with the laws, regulations, and
provisions of contracts and grant agresments.

5. We have reviewed, approved, and taken responsibility for the financial statements and
related notes.

6. We have a process to track the status of audit findings and recommendations.



10.

11.

12.

13.
14.

15.

16.

We have provided to you our views on reported audit findings, conclusions, and
recommendations, as well as planned corrective actions.

We have identified and communicated to you all previous audits, attestation
engagements, and other studies related to the audit objectives and whether related

recommendations have been implemented.

The methods, data, and significant assumptions used by us in making accounting
estimates and their related disclosures are appropriate to achieve recognition,
measurement, or disclosure that is reasonable in the context of accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America.

All related party relationships and transactions have been appropriately accounted for
and disclosed in accordance with the requirements of accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America.

All events subsequent to the date of the financial statements and for which accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America require adjustment or

disclosure have been adjusted or disclosed.

We have reviewed and approved the various adjusting journal entries you have
proposed for recording in our books and records and reflected in the financial

statements.

We are not aware of any pending or threatened litigation, claims, or assessments, or
unasserted claims or assessments that are required to be accrued or disclosed in the
financial statements in accordance with Govemmental Accounting Standards Board
(GASB) Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements (FASB
Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 450, Contingencies), and we have not
consulted a lawyer concerning litigation, claims, or assessments.

All funds and activities are properly classified.

All funds that meet the quantitative criteria in GASB Statement No. 34, Basic Financial
Statements — and Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local
Governments, GASB Statement No. 37, Basic Financial Statements — and
Management’s Discussion and Analysis — for State and Local Governments: Omnibus,
as amended, and GASB Statement No. 65, ftems Previously Reported as Assets and
Liabilities for presentation as major are identified and presented as such and all other
funds that are presented as major are considered important to financial statement users.

All components of net position, nonspendable fund balance, and restricted, committed,
assigned, and unassigned fund balance are properly classified and, if applicable,

approved.

Our policy regarding whether to first apply restricted or unrestricted resources when an
expense is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted net
position/fund balance are available is appropriately disclosed and net position/fund
balance is properly recognized under the policy.



17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

25.

26.

All revenues within the statement of activities have been properly classified as program
revenues, general revenues, contributions to term or permanent endowments, or

contributions to permanent fund principal.

All expenses have been properly classified in or allocated to functions and programs in
the statement of activities, and allocations, if any, have been made on a reasonable

basis.

All interfund and intra-entity transactions and balances have been properly classified and
reported.

Deposit and investment risks have been properly and fully disclosed.

Capital assets, including infrastructure assets, are properly capitalized, reported, and if
applicable, depreciated.

The possibility exists that the value of specific significant capital assets or certain
identifiable intangibles may be impaired. We have reviewed capital assets, including
certain identifiable intangibles for impairment, whenever events or changes in
circumstances have indicated that the carmying amount of the assets might not be
recoverable, and have appropriately recorded the adjustment.

We believe that the actuarial assumptions and methods used to measure
postemployment benefit liabilities and costs for financial accounting purposes are

appropriate in the circumstances.

All required supplementary information is measured and presented within the prescribed
guidelines.

With respect to the required and other supplementary information accompanying the
financial statements:

a. We acknowledge our responsibility for the presentation of the required and other
supplementary information in accordance with accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States of America.

b. We believe the required and other supplementary information, including form and
content, are measured and fairly presented in accordance with accounting principles

generally accepted in the United States of America.

c. The methods of measurement and presentation have not changed from those used
in the prior year.

With regard to investments and other instruments reported at fair value:

a. The underlying assumptions are reasonable and they appropriately reflect
management's intent and ability to carry out its stated courses of action.

b. The measurement methods and related assumptions used in determining fair value
are appropriate in the circumstances and have been consistently applied.



27.

28.

c. The disclosures related to fair value are complete, adequate, and in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

d. There are no subsequent events that require adjustments to the fair value
measurements and disclosures included in the financial statements.

With respect to the preparation of financial statements, calculation of depreciation, and
calculation of postemployment benefit related amounts performed by you, we have

performed the following:

a. Made all management decisions and performed all management functions;
b. Assigned a competent individual to oversee the services;

c. Evaluated the adequacy of the services performed;

d. Evaluated and accepted responsibility for the results of the services performed; and

e. Established and maintained internal controls, including a process to monitor the
system of intemal control.

There have been no cybersecurity breaches or other cyber events whose effects should
be considered for disclosure in the financial statements, as a basis for recording a loss
contingency, or otherwise considered when preparing the financial statements.

Information Provided

29,

30.

31.

32.

33.

We have provided you with:

a. Access to all information of which we are aware that is relevant to the preparation
and falr presentation of the financial statements of the various opinion units referred
{o above, such as records, documentation, meeting minutes, and other matters;

b. Additional information that you have requested from us for the purpose of the audit;
and

¢. Unrestricted access to persons within the District from whom you determined it
necessary to obtain audit evidence.

All transactions have been recorded in the accounting records and are reflected in the
financial statements.

We have disclosed to you the results of our assessment of the risk that the financial
statements may be materially misstated as a result of fraud.

We have provided to you our evaluation of the District's ability to continue as a going
concern, including significant conditions and events present, and we believe that our use
of the going concem basis of accounting is appropriate.

We have no knowledge of any fraud or suspected fraud affecting the District involving
management, employees who have significant roles in internal control, or others where
the fraud could have a material effect on the financial statements.

N



35.

36.

37.

38.

39.

40.

41.

42.

43,

We have no knowledge of any allegations of fraud or suspected fraud affecting the
District's financial statements communicated by employees, former employees, vendors,

regulators, or others.

We have disclosed to you the identity of all the District's related parties and the nature of
all the related party relationships and transactions of which we are aware.

There have been no communications from regulatory agencies conceming
noncompliance with, or deficiencies in, accounting, internal control, or financial reporting

practices.

The District has no plans or intentions that may materially affect the camying value or
classification of assets and liabilities.

We have disclosed to you all guarantees, whether written or oral, under which the
District is contingently liable.

We have disclosed to you all significant estimates and material concenirations known to
management that are required to be disclosed in accordance with GASB Statement No.
62. Significant estimates are estimates at the balance sheet date that could change
materlally within the next year. Concentration refers to volumes of business, revenues,
available sources of supply, or markets or geographic areas for which evenis could
occur that would significantly disrupt normal finances within the next year.

We have identified and disclosed to you the laws, regulations, and provisions of
contracts and grant agreements that could have a direct and materlal effect on financial
statement amounts, including legal and contractual provisions for reporting specific

activities in séparate funds.

There are no:

a. Violations or possible violations of laws or regulations, or provisions of contracts or
grant agreements whose effects should be considered for disclosure in the financial
statements or as a basis for recording a loss contingency, including applicable

budget laws and regulations.

b. Other liabilities or gain or loss contingencies that are required to be accrued or
disclosed by GASE Statement No. 62.

North County Recreation District has satisfactory title to all owned assets, and there are
no liens or encumbrances on such assets, nor has any asset or future revenue been

pledged as collateral, except as disclosed to you.

We have complied with all aspects of grant agreements and other contractual
agreements that would have a material effect on the financlal statements in the event of

noncompliance.

Y /220728

Justin Smith, Exg,dutive Director Date
/7 L

o
4
#
IS g



January 15, 2026

Office of the Secretary of State
Audits Division

255 Capitol Street NE, Suite 180
Salem, Oregon 97310

Pian of Action for North County Recreation District

North County Recreation District respectfully submits the following corrective
action plan in response to deficiencies reported in our audit of the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2025. The audit was completed by the independent auditing firm, Koontz,
Blasquez & Associates, P.C., Albany, Oregon, who reported the deficiencies listed
below. The plan of action was adopted by the governing body of the District at their
meeting on January 15, 2026, as indicated by the signatures below.

The deficiencies are listed below, including the adopted plan of action and
timeframe for each.

1. Significant Deficiency: Segregation of Duties

a. Description: Due to the limited number of available personnel, it is not
always possible to adequately segregate certain incompatible duties so
that no one employee has access to both physical assets and the
related accounting records or to all phases of a transaction.
Conseguently, the possibility exists that unintentional or intentional
errors of irregularities could exist and not be promptly detected.

Recommendation: The auditor recommended that the board and
management remain diligent in monitoring the financial activities of the

District.

b. Plan of action: The District will continue to monitor monthly financials
and provide to Board for approval on a monthly basis.

¢. Timeframe for, or date of, implementation: immediately continue
process.

A



2. Significant Deficiency: Preparation of Financial Statements in Accordance with
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles {GAAP)

a. Description: Auditing standards require the auditor to assess the internal control
system of the District. In addition, the standards require the auditor to extend this
assessment of controls over financial statement preparation. Proper controls over
financial statement preparation require adequate knowledge and involvement to detect
errors and omissions in the financial statements. The District relies on the auditor to
assist in drafting the financial statements. In addition, the auditor verifies that the
financial statements, including note disclosures, contain all of the elements required
to comply with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America. The auditor believes that the District has staff with the ability to understand,
review, and take responsibility for the financial statements required to comply with
independence standards; however, the auditor’s assistance in drafting the financial
statements described above does produce a significant deficiency in the District's

internal control system.

Recommendation: The auditor does not recommend any change in the preparation
of the financial statements, but that the board should be aware of this deficiency and
stress the importance of thorough review of the financial statements prior to approval

of the audit.

b. Plan of action: North County Recreation District considers the cost of staffing the
financial expertise to correct this deficiency to outweigh the benefit, and has
determined that it is more beneficial to continue to outsource these matters to external

experts.

c. Timeframe for, or date of, implementation: Immediately continue process.

3. Significant Deficiency: Compliance with Oregon Budget Law

a. Description: During the audit, the auditor noted that the District expended funds in
excess of the amounts appropriated, which is in violation of ORS 294.100.

Recommendation: The auditor recommended that the District: review and ensure
compliance with Oregon Budget Law, remain diligent in monitoring the budget and
actual amounts, and prepare supplemental budgets or appropriation transfers as

necessary to avoid over-expenditures.

b. Plan of action: Increased awareness and monitoring of the reconciliation process, as
well as implementing appropriation transfers or supplemental budgets, will rectify any

issues.

c. Timeframe for, or date of, inplementation: Immediate



Signed by:

Justin Smith, Executive Director

Michael Howes, Board Chair

Date

Date

@



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION

DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

June 30, 2025




NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

DISTRICT OFFICIALS
June 30, 2025

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Michael Howes, Chair
Nehalem, Oregon 97131
Term Ends June 30, 2027

Mary Gallagher, Vice Chair
Nehalem, Oregon 97131
Term Ends: June 30, 2027

Erin Laskey-Wilson, Secretary
Nehalem, Oregon 97131
Term Ends June 30, 2027

Doug Sparks
Nehalem, Oregon 97131
Term Ends June 30, 2025

Frankie Knight, Il

Nehalem, Oregon 97131
Term Ends June 30, 2025

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Justin Smith
P.O. Box 207
Nehalem, Oregon 97131



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

TABLE OF CONTENTS
June 30, 2025
Page
Number
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
Title Page
District Officials
Table of Contents
FINANCIAL SECTION
Independent AUGIOF'S REPOT.......crecruiisscsieress s s 1-3
Management's DiScuSSION and ANAIYSIS .......ccowuieerrrenrescremssimsnness st 4-9
Basic Financial Statements
Government-Wide Financial Statements
Statement Of Net POSIHION .....c..cociciiiersresinenmmsniseiss s tsinasss s s 10
Statement OF ACHVItIES ...cuuerreerreeressreresssmmniseesnisssesisnasaestns s st ssa s s s sanin s sane s 11
Fund Financial Statements
Balance Sheet — Governmental FUNTS .....o.civmimeennineicssinn s 12
Reconciliation of Total Governmental Fund Balances to Net Position of
Governmental ACHVIEIES .....vvvvecrreresirsremsmmmnrrs s s s ien 13
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances —
GOVErNMENTAI FUNMS ....oiiveereriececcnercssamsssssersenc s ssarmses s ssssess s st aae s nnanas s ines 14
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities ......c.cceeeen. 15
Notes to Basic Financial Statements.........oveevsssscniienniiniisnnc st 16-32
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and Actual — General FUNG.......cocuomminiesimssmienines s 33
Other Supplementary Information — Individual Fund Schedules
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance —
Budget and Actual —
Capital Asset ReServe FUNG ..ot 34
Aquatic Center Project FUNG ..ot 35
OTHER FINANCIAL SCHEDULES
Taxable PIOPERY VAIUES .....c...ccurmmerriciastrermarssssssessastssses st sbs s s st s s 36
MEJOT TOXPAYETS ..vvvreveessnmssnsassonsssassrssrssistsssstassasmsys s s s s R0 37
Long-Term Debt Schedule
General Obligation Bonds, Series 2021.......cciencomim it s 38
Full Faith and Credit Obligations, Series 2021...........couivmmmmmnsenmsiriniees 39
Eull Faith and Credit Obligations, Serigs 2025........c.comrriimemennmnnimmnins s 40
Outstanding LONG-Term BOMOWINGS........rcrwerrstsasssmsusnsrsstsnsmssssssinssassas s s s s 41
TaxXable PrOPErtY VAIUES......cveeememrseesseerrsissmnsssssssasssss st s 42
Schedule of Property Tax TransSachons ...........ocveesearssestiisimissimnss st 43
AUDIT COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY STATE REGULATIONS
44-45

Independent Auditor's Report Required by Oregon State Regulations..........c.cocoonmmnssnennes



FINANCIAL SECTION

(3



KOONTZ, BLASQUEZ

ASSOCIATES, PC.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

Board of Directors
North County Recreation District

Nehalem, Oregon 97131

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of North
County Recreation District, Nehalem, Oregon as of and for the year ended June 30, 2025, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the District's basic financial

statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the govemmental activities and each major fund of North County
Recreation District as of June 30, 2025, and the respective changes in financial position thereof for the
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of

America.

Basls for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States
of America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be
independent of North County Recreation District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

North County Recreation District’s management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to
the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement,

whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions
or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about North County Recreation
District’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

920 Elm Street SW + P.O. Box 605 * Albany, Oregon 97321
(541) 926-5543 * (541) 967-9460 fax



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not absolute
assurance, and therefore, is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial

statements.
In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we:
« Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

« Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures

in the financial statements.

« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of North County Recreation District’s internal control. Accordingly,

no such opinion is expressed.

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the

financial statements.

Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events considered in the aggregate
that raise substantial doubt about the District's ability to continue as a going concern for a

reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related

matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 4 through 9
and 33, respectively, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is
the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the management’s discussion and analysis in
accordance with GAAS, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing
the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the management’s
discussion and analysis because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to

express an opinion or provide any assurance.
2

2T



The budgetary comparison information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise North County Recreation District’s basic financial statements. The individual fund
schedules, taxable property values schedule, major taxpayers schedule, long-term debt schedules,
outstanding long-term borrowings schedule, taxable property values schedule, and schedule of
property tax transactions are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part

of the basic financial statements.

The individual fund schedules are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements.
Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such
information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in
accordance with GAAS. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation

to the basic financial statements as a whole.

The taxable property values schedule, major taxpayers schedule, long-term debt schedules,
outstanding long-term borrowings schedule, taxable property values schedule, and schedule of
property tax transactions have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on

them.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have
issued our report dated December 30, 2025, on our consideration of compliance with certain provisions
of laws and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon
Administrative Rules. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance
and the resuls of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on compliance.

Koontz, Blasquez & Associates, P.C.

By: N&"U)m L .’% 9%?1/”-(.

Debra L. Blasquez, CPA L/

Albany, Oregon
December 30, 2025



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

@



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

INTRODUCTION

As management of North County Recreation District, Nehalem, Oregon, we offer readers this narrative
overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025. It
should be read in conjunction with the District’s financial statements, which follow this section.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

« At June 30, 2025, total net positon of North County Recreation District amounted to
$11,427,285. Of this amount, $8,959,808, was invested in capital assets, net of related debt.
The remaining balance included $1,151,848 restricted for capital acquisitions and $1,315,629 of

unrestricted net position.

e The District's total net position increased by $2,838,317 during the current fiscal year.

OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to North County Recreation
District's basic financial statements. The District’s basic financial statements are comprised of three
components: (1) government-wide financial statements, (2) fund financial statements, and (3) notes fo
the basic financial statements. This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to

the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of
the District's finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The statement of net position presents information on all of the District's assets and liabilities with the
difference between the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position
may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or

deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information showing how the District's net position changed during
the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event
giving rise to the change occurs, regardiess of the timing of related cash flows. Thus, revenues and
expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal
periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave).

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 10 through 11 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements are designed to demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal
requirements overseeing the use of fund accounting. A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is
used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities and objectives.
All of the funds of North County Recreation District are governmental funds.

4



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

o Governmental Funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as
governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements; however, unlike the
government-wide financial statements, governmental fund financial statements focus on near-
term inflows and outflows of available resources, as well as on balances of available resources
at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating the District's near-

term financing requirements.

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial
statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar
information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements.
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the District’s near-term
financing decisions: Both the governmental funds balance sheet and the governmental funds
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to
facilitate this comparison between governmental funds and governmental activities.

The District maintains three individual governmental funds. Information is presented separately
in the governmental funds balance sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances for the General and Aquatic Center Project Funds,
which are considered major governmental funds, and the Capital Asset Reserve fund which is

considered non-major.

North County Recreation District adopts an annual appropriated budget for all of its funds. A
budgetary comparison statement has been provided for each fund individually to demonstrate

compliance with their respective budgets.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 12 through 15 of this
report.

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes to the basic financial statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to
the basic financial statements can be found on pages 16 through 32 of this report.

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain
required supplementary information, which includes budgetary comparison information for the General
Fund. This required supplementary information can be found on page 33 of this report.

The individual fund schedules are presented immediately following the required supplementary
information on pages 34 through 35 of this report.



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

As noted earlier, net position may serve over time as a useful indicator of the District’s financial
position. At June 30, 2025, the District's assets exceeded liabilities by $11,427,285.

A large portion of the District's net position (78.4%) reflects its Investment in capital assets (e.g., land,
buildings, and equipment) less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding.
The District uses these capital assets to provide services to customers; consequently, these assets are
not available for future spending. Although the District’s investment in capital assets is reported net of
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from
other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

District’s Net Position
The District's net position increased by $2,838,317 during the current fiscal year.
Condensed statement of net position information is shown below.

Condensed Statement of Net Position

Governmental Activities

2025 2024
Assets
Current assets $ 2,142,161 $ 1,253,546
Non-current assefs 5,000 -
Restricted assets 1,151,848 4,397,744

18,031,611 10,926,193

Capital assets, net

Total assets 21,330,620 16,577,483
Liabilities
Current liabilities 526,470 222,582
Noncurrent liabilities 9,376,865 7,765,933
Total liabilities 9,903,335 7,988,615
Net position
Net investment in capital assets 8,959,808 3,683,959
Restricted 1,151,848 4,397,744
Unrestricted 1,315,629 507,265

$ 11,427,285 §$ 8,588,968

Total net position

(W)



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT

Nehalem, Oregon

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

District’s Changes in Net Position

The condensed statement of activities information shown below explains changes in net position.

Condensed Statement of Activities

Program revenues
Charges for services
Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions

Total program revenues

General revenues
Property taxes
Timber revenue
Unrestricted grants and contributions
Investment earnings
Amortization of bond premiums

Miscellaneous
Total general revenues
Total revenues
Program expenses
Recreational facilities and activities
Interest on long-term debt

Total program expenses

Change in net position

Net position - beginning of year

Net position - end of year

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE DISTRICT'S FUNDS

Governmantal Activities

2025 2024
$ 239,277 $ 228,321
16,566 30,126
2,527,546 720,737
2,783,389 879,184
1,467,518 1,413,881
358,462 269,366
27,569 18,410
157,066 425,359
32,863 32,862
76,216 83,903
2,119,694 2,243,781
4,903,083 3,222,965
1,788,865 1,461,882
275,801 237,809
2,064,766 1,699,691
2,838,317 1,623,274
8,588,968 7,065,694
$ 11,427,285 $ 8,588,968

As noted earlier, the District uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with finance-

related legal requirements.



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Governmental Funds

The focus of the District's governmental funds is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows,
and balances of expendable resources. Such information is useful in assessing the District’s financing
requirements. In particular, unassigned fund balance may serve as a useful measurement of the
District's net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At the end of the current fiscal year, the District's major governmental funds reported combined fund
balances of $2,812,964, a decrease of $2,784,942 from the prior year. This amount included $38,315 of
non-spendable fund balance related to prepaid expenses, and $1,151 ,848 restricted for capital
acquisitions. The remaining $1,315,629 constitutes unassigned fund balance available for spending at

the District’s discretion.

Sianificant Changes in Maijor Governmental Fund Balances

e General Fund: The 38% increase in unassigned fund balance can be attributed to a decrease in
General Fund expenditures.

e Aquatic Center Project Fund: The 92% decrease in fund balance can be attributed to pool
construction.

BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS: GENERAL FUND

Significant variances between budgeted and actual amounts in the General Fund for the year ended
June 30, 2025, include:

Grants and contributions were budgeted for $73,450. Actual revenues were $921,350 (1154.4%
over budget) due to receiving unbudgeted grants and contributions.

« Investment earnings were budgeted for $30,000. Actual revenues were $149,497 (398.3% over
budget) due to unexpected significant rate increases in the LGIP account.

+ Expenditures in the aquatics department was budgeted for $586,075. Actual expenditure was
$324,947 (44.6% under budget) due to additional budgeted expenditures being unnecessary in

the current fiscal year.

¢ Expenditures in the performing arts department were budgeted for $98,350. Actual expenditure
was $68,634 (30.2% under budget) due to additional budgeted expenditures being unnecessary

in the current fiscal year.



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

The District’s investment in capital assets for its governmental activities as of June 30, 2025, amounted
to $18,031,611, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization. This investment in capital assets
includes land, construction in progress, buildings and facility improvements, office equipment and
furnishings, machinery and equipment, infrastructure, and intangible right to use lease assets for a
copier. The total depreciation and amortization expense related to the District’s investment in capital
assets for the current fiscal year amounted to $150,088.

Additional information on the District’s capital assets can be found in Note IlI-B on pages 26 through 27
of this report.

Long-Term Liabilities

At the end of the current fiscal year, the District had total long-term liabilities outstanding of $9,750,663,
including bond premiums of $678,860. This amount is comprised of a lease payable and bonds
payable. The District’s total long-term liabilities outstanding increased by $1,802,137 during the current

fiscal year.

Additional information on the District's long-term liabilities can be found in Note llI-E on pages 28
through 29 of this report.

KEY ECONOMIC FACTORS AND BUDGET INFORMATION FOR THE FUTURE

At the time these financial statements were prepared and audited, the District was aware of the
following circumstances that could affect its future financial health:

e The District is in the process of constructing a new pool. The project will be partially funded by
the Aquatic Center Project Fund and is expected to cost $16.5 million.

This factor was considered in preparing the District's budget for the 2025-2026 fiscal year.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the District’s finances for all those with
an interest. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for
additional information should be addressed to: North County Recreation District, P.O. Box 207,

Nehalem, Oregon 97131,



BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivable
Prepaid insurance

Total current assets

Non-current assets
Note receivable

Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents

Capital assets
Land and construction in progress
Capltal assets, net of accumulated depreciati

June 30, 2025

on

Intangibles - right to use lease assets, net of accumulated amortization

Total capital assets
Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities

Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Compensated absences, current portion
Lease payable, current portion
Bonds payable, current portion
Bond premiums, current portion

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Compensated absences, less current portion
Lease payable, less current portion
Bonds payable, less current portion
Bond premiums, less current portion
Accrued interest

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted ’
Unrestricted

Total net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

10

Governmental

Activities

$ 2,045,246
58,600

38,315

2,142,161

5.000

1,151,848

16,077,542
1,937,503
16,566

———————

18,031,611

21,330,620

60,339
51,445
20,228
5,696
356,000
32,862

526 470

7,107
11,207
8,699,000
645,998
13,663

-

9376865
9,903,335

—_—

8,959,808
1,151,848
1,315,629

$ 11,427,285

o\



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Program Revenues

Net (Expense)
Revenue and
Changes in
Net Position

Operating
Charges for Grants and

Capital
Grants and Governmental

Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions  Contributions Activities
Governmental activities
Recreational facilities and
activities $1,788,865 $§ 239,277 $ 16,566 $ 2,527,546 $ 994,524
Interest on long-term debt 275,901 - - - (275,901)
Total governmental activites  § 2,064,766 $ 239,277 $ 16,566 $ 2,527,546 718,623
General revenues
Property taxes 1,467,518
Timber revenue 358,462
Unrestricted grants and contributions 27,569
Investment earmnings 157,066
Amortization of bond premiums 32,863
Miscellaneous 76,216
Total general revenues 2,119,694
Change in net position 2,838,317
Net position - beginning 8,588,968

Net position - ending

The accompanying hotes are an integral part of these financial statements,
1

$ 11,427,285



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT

Nehalem, Oregon

BALANCE SHEET

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Property taxes receivable
Prepaid expenses
Notes receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF
RESOURCES, AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities

Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Unavailable revenue - property taxes

Fund balances (deficit)
Nonspendable
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances (deficit)

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balances

June 30, 2025

Nonmajor
Capital Govemmental

Projects Fund Fund Total
General Agquatic Capital Asset Governmental

Fund Center Project _Reserve Fund Funds
$ 2531786 $ 349647 § 315661 $ 3,197,004
58,600 - - 58,600
38,315 - - 38,315
5,000 - - 5,000
$ 2,633,701 $ 349647 $ 315,661 $ 3,299,009
$ 60,339 § - $ - % 60,339
51,445 - - 51,445
111,784 - - 111,784
58,600 - - 58,600
38,315 - - 38,315
802,201 349,647 - 1,151,848
- - 315,681 315,661
1,622,801 - - 1,622,801
2,463,317 349,647 315,661 3,128,625
$ 2,633,701 $ 349647 $ 315661 $ 3,299,009

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

12




NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT

Nehalem, Oregon

RECONCILIATION OF TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL FUND BALANCES TO NET POSITION OF

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

June 30, 2025

Total fund balances

Capital assets are not financial resources and are therefore not reported in
the governmental funds:

Cost of non-depreciable capital assets

Accumulated depreciation

Cost of intangible right to use lease assets

Accumulated amortization

Property tax reverue is recognized in the net position of governmental
activities when the taxes are levied; however, in the governmental fund
statements, it is recognized when available to be used for current year
operations. Taxes not collected within 15 days of the end of the year are not
considered available to pay for current year operations and are therefore not
reported as revenue in the governmental funds.

Long-term liabilities not payable in the cument year are not reported as
governmental fund liabilities. Interest on long-term debt is not accrued in the
governmental funds, but rather, is recognized as an expenditure when due.
These liabilities consist of:

Compensated absences payable

Lease payable

Bonds payable

Bond premiums

Accrued inferest

Net position of governmental activities

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
13

$ 3,128,625
19,840,229
(1.825,184)
28,007
(11,441) 18,031,611
58,600
(27,335)
(16,803)
(9,055,000)
(678,860)
(13,553) (9,791,551)
$ 11,427,285



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

REVENUES
Property taxes
Timber revenue
Charges for services

Grants and contributions

Investment eamings
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES

Cumrent
Activities
Administration
Aquatics .
Fitness
Performing arts
Youth

Debt service

Capital outlay

Total expenditures

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Captial Projects Funds

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)

Bond Proceeds

Net change in fund balances

Fund balances - beginning, as previously presented

Change within the financial reporting entity

{major to nonmajor fund)

Fund balances - as adjusted

Fund balances - ending

General Capital Asset Aquatic
Fund Reserve Center Project
$ 1460848 § - 3 -
239,277 - -
921,350 - 1,650,331
149,497 - 7,322
76,216 - -
2,847,188 - 1,657,653
18,762 - -
786,608 ~ -
324,947 - -
229,098 - -
68,634 - -
158,184 - -
- - 436,938
- - 7,266,612
1,586,233 - 7,703,550
1,260,955 - (6,045,897)
- - 2,000,000
1,260,955 - (4,045,897)
1,202,362 (1,668) 4,395,544
- 1,668 -
1,202,362 - 4,395,544
$ 2463317 $ - 349,647

14



Nonmajor

Governmental
Fund Total
Capital Asset Governmental
Reserve Fund Funds
$ - $ 1,460,848
358,462 358,462
- 239,277
- 2,571,681
247 157,066
- 76,216
358,709 4,863,550
- 18,762
- 786,808
- 324,947
- 229,008
- 68,634
- 158,184
- 436,938
41,380 7,307,992
41,380 9,331,163
317,329 (4,467,613)
- 2,000,000
317,328 (2,467,613)
- 5,596,238
(1 166;8} =
(1,668) 5,596,238
$ 315,661 $ 3,128,625




NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Net change in fund balances

Amounts reported for governmental activities on the statement of activities
are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlay as expenditures; however, on the
statement of activilies, the costs of these assets are allocated over their
estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. This is the
amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current

period.

$ (2.467,613)

Expenditures for capital assets 7,255,506
Less current year depreciation (144,487) 7,111,019
Governmental funds report the costs of right to use lease assets as
expenditures; however, on the statement of activities, the costs of these
ascets are allocated over the terms of the leases and reported as
amortization expense.
Current year amortization {5,601)
Long-term liabilities are not due or payable in the current period and are
therefore not reported in the governmental fund statements. These
liabilities consist of:
Compensated absences payable (5,489)
Property tax revenue is recognized in the net position of governmental
activities when the taxes are levied; however, in the govemmental fund
statements, it is recognized when available to be used for current year
operations. 6,670
Long-term debt proceeds are reported as other financing sources in the
governmental funds. On the statement of net position, however, issuing
long-term debt increases liabilities. Similarly, repayment of principal is an
expenditure in the governmental funds, but reduces the liability on the
statement of net position.
Lease liability payments 5,431
Accrued interest payable (3.963)
Bond proceeds (2,000,000}
Bonds payable 165,000
Bond premiums 32,863 (1,800,669)
$ 2838317

Change in net position

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
15

@



NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2025

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of North County Recreation District have been prepared in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the
District's accounting policies are described below.

A. Reporting Entity

North County Recreation District became operational in 1997 following voter approval of a proposal
to maintain and enhance a community center, fitness center, and a pool. The District is currently
governed by a five-member board of directors elected from the District at large.

B. Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the activities of the District.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with
a specific function. Program revenues include: (1) charges for goods and services provided by a
given function and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or
capital requirements of a particular function. Taxes and other items not properly included among

program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Individual govemmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statemenis are reported using the economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of the related cash
flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and
similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the

provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when
they are collectible within the current period or scon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the
current period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available if they are collected
within 15 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Expenditures are generally recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting; however, principal and interest on long-term debt,
as well as expenditures related to compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due.

16

¢



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2025

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting, and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Property taxes, investment earnings, and charges for services associated with the current fiscal
period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and have therefore been recognized as
revenues of the current fiscal period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and

available only when cash is received by the District.

The District reports on the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the District's primary operating fund. It accounts for all
financial resources of the District except for those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The primary source of revenue is property taxes.

Capital Proiects Funds

Aquatic Center Project Fund — The Aquatic Center Project Fund accounts for the revenues and
expenditures associated with the purchase and construction of the new aquatic center site and
tacilities. The primary sources of revenue are property taxes and investment earnings.

The District reports on the following nonmajor governmental funds:

Capital Projects Funds

Capital Asset Reserve Fund — The Capital Asset Reserve Fund accounts for the revenues and
expenditures associated with the purchase, construction, and major repair of capital assets. The
primary sources of revenue are timber revenue, grants and contributions, and investment

earnings.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,
services, or privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and
contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as
program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District's policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. Furthermore,
committed fund balances are reduced first, followed by assigned amounts, and then unassigned
amounts when expenditures are incurred for purposes for which amounts in any of those
unrestricted fund balance classifications can be used.

17



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2025

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, Net Position, and Fund

Balance (Continued)
1. Deposits and Investments

The District's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,
and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of

acquisition.

State statutes authorize the District to invest in legally issued general obligations of the United
States, the agencies and instrumentalities of the United States and the states of Oregon,
Washington, Idaho, or California, certain interest-bearing bonds, time deposit open accounts,
certificates of deposit, and savings accounts in banks, mutual savings banks, and savings and
loan associations that maintain a head office or a branch in this state in the capacity of a bank,
mutual savings bank, or savings and loan association, and share accounts and savings
accounts in credit unions in the name of, or for the benefit of, a member of the credit union

pursuant to a plan of deferred compensation.

1. Property Taxes

Under state law, county governments are responsible for extending authorized property tax
levies, computing tax rates, billing and collecting all property taxes, and making periodic
remittances of collection to entities levying taxes. Property taxes are levied and become a lien
as of July 1 on property values assessed as of June 30. An allowance for doubtful accounts is
not deemed necessary, as uncollectible taxes become a lien on the associated property.
Property taxes are payable in three installments, which are due on November 15, February 15,

and May 15.

Uncollected property taxes are shown as assets in the governmental funds. Property taxes
collected within approximately 15 days of fiscal year end are recognized as revenue, while the
remaining amount of taxes receivable are recorded as unavailable revenue because they are

not deemed available to finance operations of the current period.

2. Timber Revenue

State and federal law provide timber revenue payments in lieu of taxes. County governments
are responsible for distributing the revenue to the District. Timber revenue is recognized when

received by the District.

3. Prepaids

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are
recorded as prepaid items in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

18



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2025

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, Net Position, and Fund

Balance (Continued)

4. Caplital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, and equipment, are reported in the government-
wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined by the District as assets with an initial,
individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such
assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost where no historical records
exist. Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of

donation.

The costs of normal maintenance or repairs that do not add to the value of an asset or
materially extend its life are charged to expenditures as incurred and are not capitalized.

Major capital outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are
constructed.

Property, plant, and equipment of the District are depreciated using the straight-line method
over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets Years
Office equipment and furnishings 3-15
Machinery and equipment 3-15
Infrastructure 3-15
Buildings and facility improvements 30-40

The District has recorded right to use lease assets in accordance with GASB Statement No. 87,
Leases. The right fo use lease assets are initially measured at an amount equal to the initial
measurement of the related lease liability plus any lease payments made prior. to the lease term,
less lease incentives, and plus ancillary charges necessary to place the lease into service. The
right to use lease assets are amortized on a straight-line basis over the terms of the related

leases, which are discussed in Note HI-E.

5. Compensated Absences

Amounts of vested or accumulated vacation and sick leave that are expected to be liquidated
with expendable available financial resources are reported as expenditures when paid. Amounts
of vested or accumulated vacation and five percent of sick leave that are not expected to be
liquidated with_expendable available financial resources are reported as long-term liabilities on

the statement of net paosition.

19



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2025

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, Net Position, and Fund
Balance (Continued)

6. Long-Term Liabilities

In the government-wide financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are
reported as liabilities on the statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums, discounts,
and issuance costs during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuance are reported as other financing
sources while discounts on debt issuance are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs,
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received are reported as materials and

services expenditures.

7. Retirement Plans

The District has authorized a deferred compensation plan to be made available tfo its employees
wherein they may execute an individual agreement with the District for amounts eamned by
them, not to be paid until a future date, when they are terminated by reascn of death,
permanent disability, retirement, or separation. The deferred compensation plan is authorized
under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 and has been approved by the Internal
Revenue Service. Under the plan document, the District has a fiduciary responsibility to
administer the plan in accordance with the requirements of IRC Section 457.

In addition, the District provides an implicit rate subsidy for retiree health insurance premiums.
The single-employer, defined benefit postemployment healthcare plan is administered by
Special Districts Insurance Services (SDIS).

8. Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that
applies to a future period and therefore, will not be recognized as an outflow of resources until

that time.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position and/or balance sheet will sometimes report
a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that
applies to a future period and therefore, will not be recognized as an inflow of resources until
that time. The District has one item that qualifies for reporting in this category, which is
unavailable revenue from property taxes. Unavailable revenue from property taxes is deferred
and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available.
Unavailable revenue from property taxes is reported on the balance sheet.

20



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2025

I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, Deferred Outflows and Inflows of Resources, Net Position, and Fund
Balance (Continued)

10. Fund Balance

The District reports on fund balance in accordance with GASB Statement No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions. The following classifications describe the

relative strength of the spending constraints:

e Non-spendable fund balance — amounts that are in non-spendable form (such as
inventory) or are required to be maintained intact.

e Restricted fund balance — amounts constrained to specific purposes by their providers
(such as grantors, bondholders, and higher levels of government), through constitutional
provisions, or by enabling legislation.

e Committed fund balance — amounts constrained to specific purposes by the District
itself, using its highest level of decision-making authority (i.e., board of directors}. To be
reported as committed, amounts cannot be used for any other purpose unless the
District takes the same highest-level action to remove or change the constraint.

e Assigned fund balance — amounts the District intends to use for a specific purpose.
Intent can be expressed by the board of directors or by an official or body to which the

board of directors delegates the authority.

e Unassigned fund balance — amounts that are available for any purpose. Positive
amounts are reported only in the General Fund.

Commitment of fund balance is accomplished through adoption of a resolution or ordinance by
the board of directors. Further, commitments of fund balance may be modified or rescinded only
through approval of the board of directors via resolution or ordinance. Authority to assign fund
balances has been granted to the Executive Director.

The District has not formally adopted a minimum fund balance policy.
E. Use of Estimates
The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted

in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect certain reported amounts and disclosures; accordingly, actual results could differ from those

estimates.

21




NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2025

IIl. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

The District budgets all funds in accordance with the requirements of state law. Annual appropriated
budgets are adopted for the general and capital projects funds. All funds are budgeted on the

modified accrual basis of accounting.

The District begins its budgeting process by appointing budget committee members. The budget
officer prepares a budget, which is reviewed by the budget committee. The budget is then published
in proposed form and is presented at public hearings to obtain taxpayer comments and approval
from the budget committee. The budget is legally adopted by the board of directors by resolution
prior to the beginning of the District’s fiscal year. The board resolution authorizing appropriations for
each fund sets the level by which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations. The General
Fund consists of activities, administration, aquatics, fitness, performing arts, and youth
departments, as well as non-departmental expenditures. For the Capital Asset Reserve and Aquatic
Center Project Funds, total personnel services, materials and services, debt service, and capital
outlay are the levels of control established by the resolution. The detailed budget document,
however, is required to contain more specific detailed information for the aforementioned
expenditure categories and management may revise the detailed line-item budgets within
appropriation categories. Unexpected additional resources may be added to the budget through the
use of a supplemental budget and appropriation resolution. Supplemental budgets less than 10% of
a fund’s original budget may be adopted by the board of directors at a regular board meeting. A
supplemental budget greater than 10% of a fund’s origina! budget requires hearings before the
public, publication in newspapers, and approval by the board of directors. Original and
supplemental budgets may be modified by the use of appropriation transfers between the levels of
control. Such transfers require approval by the board of directors. During the year, there were no
supplemental budgets. The District does not use encumbrances and appropriations lapses at year

end.

Budget amounts shown in the financial statements reflect the original budget amounts.

B. Over Expenditure

During the year ended June 30, 2025, the District expended funds in excess of the appropriated
amount because of an error in the budget resolution, which is a violation of ORS 294.100.

Fund Function Appropriations Expenditures Excess

Capital Projects Capital outlay $ 35,000 $ 41,380 $ 6,380

22



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2025

{il. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS

A. Deposits and Investments

North County Recreation District maintains a cash and cash equivalents pool that is available for
use by all funds. Each fund type's portion of this pool Is displayed on the fund financial statements
as cash and cash equivalents. Additionally, several funds held separate cash accounts. Interest
eamed on pooled cash and investments is allocated to participating funds based upon their

combined cash and investment balances.

Investments, including amounts held in pooled cash and investments, are stated at fair value. In
accordance with GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, investments
with a remaining maturity of more than one year at the time of purchase are stated at fair value. Fair
value is determined at the quoted market price, if available; otherwise, the fair value is estimated
based on the amount at which the investment could be exchanged in a current transaction between
willing parties, other than a forced liquidation sale. Investments in the State of QOregon Local

Government Investment Pool (LGIP) are stated at fair value.

The Oregon State Treasury administers the LGIP. The LGIP is an open-ended, no-load, diversified
portfolio offered to any agency, political subdivision, or public corporation of the state that by law is
made the custodian of, or has control of, any fund. The LGIP is commingled with the State’s short-
term funds. To provide regulatory oversight, the Oregon Legislature established the Oregon Short-
Term Fund Board and LGIP investments are approved by the Oregon Investment Council. The fair
value of the District’s position in the LGIP is the same as the value of the pool shares.

Credit Risk

Oregon statutes authorize the District to invest in obligations of the U.S. Treasury and U.S.
agencies, bankers’ acceptances, repurchase agreements, commercial paper rated A-1 by Standard
& Poor's Corporation or P-1 by Moody's Commercial Paper Record, and the Local Government
Investment Pool. The District has not adopted a formal policy regarding credit risk; however,

investments comply with state statutes.

Investments

As of June 30, 2025, the District had the following investments:

Credit Quality
Rating Maturities Fair Value
Oregon Local Government Investment Pool Unrated - $ 2,984,901

23



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2025

IIl. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)

A. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Interest Rate Risk

The District does not have a formal policy that limits investment maturity as a means of managing
its exposure to fair value losses arising from increases in interest rates.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The District does not have a formal policy that places a limit on the amount that may be invested in
any one insurer. 100 percent of the District's investments are in the Oregon Local Government

Investment Pool.

Custodial Credit Risk — Investments

This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a counterparty, the District will not be able to
recover the value of its investments that are in the possession of an outside party. The District does
not have a policy that limits the amount of investments that can be held by counterparties.

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits

This is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not be retumed. All
District deposits not covered by Federal Depository Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insurance are
covered by the Public Funds Collateralization Program (PFCP) of the State of Oregon, organized in
accordance with ORS 295. The PFCP is a shared liability structure for participating bank
depositories. Barring any exceptions, a bank depository is required to pledge collateral valued at a
minimum of 10% of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are considered well capitalized,
25% of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are considered adequately capitalized, or
110% of their quarter-end public fund deposits if they are considered undercapitalized or assigned
to pledge 110% by the Office of the State Treasurer. In the event of a bank failure, the entire pool of
collateral pledged by all qualified Oregon public funds bank depositories is available to repay

deposits of public funds of government entities.

The District holds accounts at 1st Security Bank, for which the FDIC provides insurance coverage
of $250,000 for demand deposit accounts and an additional $250,000 for time and savings
accounts. At June 30, 2025, the District's total deposits of $271,405 were fully insured by the FDIC

and PFCP.

24

G



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2025
lil. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)

A. Deposits and Investments (Continued)

Deposits
The District's deposits and investments at June 30, 2025, are as follows:

Cash on hand $ 351
Checking accounts 211,842

Total investments 2,984,901
Total deposits and investments $ 3,197,094
Cash and investments by fund:
Governmental activities - unrestricted
General Fund $ 1,729,585
Capital Asset Reserve Fund 315,661
Total governmental activities - unrestricted 2,045,246
Governmental activities - restricted
General Fund 802,201
Aquatic Center Project Fund 349,647
Total governmental activities - restricted 1,151,848
Total cash and investments $ 3,197,094

Restricted cash of $802,201 reported in the General Fund at June 30, 2025, represents monies
restricted for capital outlay. Restricted cash of $349,647 teported in the Aquatic Center Project
Fund at June 30, 2025, represents monies restricted for capital outlay.

25



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2025

B. Capital Assets

Governmental activities

Capital assets not being depreciated
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets not being depreciated

Capital assefs being depreciated
Buildings and facility improvements
Office equipment and furnishings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total capital assets being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for
Buildings and facility improvements
Office equipment and furnishings
Machinery and equipment
Infrastructure

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets being depreciated, net
Capital assets being amortized

Intangibles - right to use lease assets
Copier 2023

Less accumulated depreciation for
Intangibles - right to use lease assets
Copier 2023

Total capital assets being amortized, net

Governmental activities capital assets, net

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2025, was as follows:

DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)

Beginning Ending

Balance Increases Decreases Balance
$ 614636 $ = - § $ 614,636
8,220,131 7,242,715 15,462,906
8,834,827 7,242,715 16,077,542
3,302,935 - 3,302,935
30,035 - 30,035
218,909 12,791 231,700
198,017 - 198,017
3,749,896 12,791 3,762,687
(1,428,832) (121,741) (1,550,573)
(23,798) (2,739) (26,537)
(160,577) (6,934) (167,511)
(67 ,490) (13,073) (80,563)
(1,680,697) (144,487} (1,825,184)
2,069,199 (131,696) 1,937,503
28,007 - 28,007
(5,840) (5,601) (11,441)
22,167 (5,601) 16,566
$10,926,193 $7,105,418 $ $ 18,031,611

26

@



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2025
II. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)
B. Capital Assets (Continued)

Capital assets are reported on the statement of net position as follows:

Accumulated
Capital Depreciation/ Net Capital
Assets Amortization Assets
Governmental activities
Land- $ 614,636 $ - 3 614,636
Construction in progress 15,462,906 - 15,462,906
Buildings and facility improvements 3,302,935 (1,550,573) 1,752,362
Office equipment and fumishings 30,035 (26,537) 3,498
Machinery and equipment 231,700 (167,511) 64,189
Infrastructure 198,017 (80,563) 117,454
intangibles - right to use lease assets
Copier 2023 28,007 (11,441) 16,566
Total governmental capital assets $ 19,868,236 $ (1,836,625) $ 18,031,611

Depreciation expense was charged to the functions/programs of the District as follows:

Governmental activities
Depreciation expense

Recreational facilities and activities $ 144,487
Amortization expense

Recreational facilities and activities 5,601

Total $ 150,088

C. Compensated Absences
The following is a summary of compensated absences transactions for the year:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Net Change Balance One Year

Compensated absences $ 21,846 $ 5489 §$ 27,335 $ 20,228

The General Fund has traditionally been used to liquidate compensated absences liabilities.

27



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2025
lll. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)
D. Long-Term Liabilities
1. Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

The following is a summary of long-term liabilities transactions for the year:

Interest Original Beginning Ending Due Within
Rate Amount Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year
Governmental activitles

Lease payable

Copier 2023 3% $ 28007 $ 22234 $ - $ 5431 $ 16803 § 5,696
Bonds

Aquatic Center GO Bonds 2021 3% 4,355,000 4,245,000 - 60,000 4,185,000 70,000
Aquatic Center Full Faith Bonds 2021 3% 3,250,000 2,975,000 - 105,000 2,870,000 105,000
Full Faith Bonds 2025 507% __ 2,000000 - 2,000,000 - 2,000,000 181,000
9,605,000 7,220,000 2,000,000 165,000 9,055,000 356,000
Bond premiums N/A 810,311 711,723 - 32,863 678,860 32,862
Total bonds, including premiums 10,415,311 7,931,723 2,000,000 197,863 9,733,860 388,862
Total long-term liabilities $10,443,318 $7,953957  $2000,000 $ 203294 $9,750,663 §$ 394458

2. Governmental Activity Lease Payable

The District has entered into an agreement to lease certain equipment. The lease agreement
qualifies as an other-than short-term lease under GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, and

therefore,
the date of inception.

a. Copier 2023 Lease

has been recorded at the present value of the future minimum lease payments as of

On June 15, 2023, the District entered into a confract to lease a copier for a period of 60
months, ending on May 15, 2028. The lease calls for payments of $502 per month. Variable
payments consist of $0.011 per copy over 3,000 black and white images and $0.06 per copy
over 2,100 color images. The lease liability was measured at an implied discount rate of 3%.
The District has recorded a right to use lease assets with a net book value of $22,167 on

June 30, 2025. The right to use lease assets is discussed in more detail in Note IlI-B.

28



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2025

IV. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued)

E. Long-Term Liabilities (Continued)

3. Governmental Activity Aquatic Center Series 2021 General Obligation Bonds

On April 7, 2021, the District issued general obligation bonds in the amount of $4,355,000 to
fund the new agquatic center project. Interest is fixed at 3% and payable semiannually on
December 15 and June 15. Principal payments are due annually on June 15.

4. Governmental Activity Aquatic Center Series 2021 Full Faith Bonds

On April 7, 2021, the District issued full faith and credit obfigations in the amount of $3,250,000
to fund the new aquatic center project. Interest is fixed at 3% and payable semiannually on
December 15 and June 15. Principal payments are due annually on June 15.

5. Governmental Activity Aquatic Center Series 2025 Full Faith Bonds

On January 17, 2025, the District issued full faith and credit obligations in the amount of
$2,000,000 to fund the new aquatic center project. Interest is fixed at 5.07% and payable
semiannually on December 15 and June 15. Principal payments are due annually on June 15.

6. Governmental Activity Future Maturities on Long-Term Liabilities

Year Ending Lease Payable Bonds Total
June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest
2026 $ 5596 $ 428 $ 356,000 $ 329,800 § 361,526 $ 330,228
2027 5,767 257 380,000 315,373 385,767 315,630
2028 5,440 82 405,000 300,040 410,440 300,122
2029 - - 420,000 283,750 420,000 283,750
2030 - - 450,000 266,803 450,000 266,803
2031-2035 - - 2,379,000 1,042,343 2,379,000 1,042,343
2036-2040 - - 1,845,000 678,650 1,845,000 678,650
2041-2045 - - 2,435,000 351,550 2,435,000 351,550
2046 - - 385,000 15,400 385,000 15,400
$ 16803 § 767 $ 9,055,000 $ 3,583,710 $ 9,071,803 § 3,584,477
29

@



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2025

Iil. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS AND ACCOUNT GROUPS (Continued})

F. Constraints on Fund Balances

Constraints on fund balances reported on the balance sheet are as follows:

Capital Asset Agquatic Total
General Reserve Center Governmental
Fund Fund Project Fund Funds
Fund balances:
Nonspendable - prepaids $ 38315 § - § - $ 38,315
Restricted for:
Capital acquisitions 802,201 - 349,647 1,151,848
Unassigned 1,622,801 - - 1,622,801
Total fund balances $ 2,463,317 $ - $ 349,647 $ 2,812,964

IV. OTHER INFORMATION

A. Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; efrors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the District carries commercial
insurance. There was no significant reduction in insurance coverage from the previous year. There
were no insurance settlements exceeding insurance coverage in any of the past three years.

B. Deferred Compensation Plan

The District has authorized a deferred compensation plan to be made available to its employees
wherein they may execute an individual agreement with the District for amounts earned by them,

not to be paid until a future date, when they are terminated b

y reason of death, permanent

disability, retirement, or separation. The deferred compensation plan is authorized under Internal
Revenue Code (IRC) Section 457 and has been approved by the Internal Revenue Service. Under
the plan document, the District has a fiduciary responsibility to administer the plan in accordance
with the requirements of IRC Section 457. The District has no liability for any losses that may be
incurred under the plan. District contributions for the year ended June 30, 2025, amounted to

$16,928.

30

(q



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
June 30, 2025

IV. OTHER INFORMATION (Continued)

C. Other Postemployment Benefits

The effect of applying the provisions of GASB Statement No. 75, Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Postemployment Benefits other than Pensions, is considered immaterial to the
District's financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2025, and has therefore not been

recorded. .
D. Tax Abatements

The District did not have tax abatements for the year ended June 30, 2025.

E. Related Party

Friends of NCRD raises money to support the District. The money is given to the District once the
donation requirements are met. A board member of the District has signature authority for one of
the Friends of NCRD’s investment accounts. The District received approximately $1,085,508 from

Friends of NCRD during the year ended June 30, 2025.

F. Changes within the Financial Reporting Entity

During the year ended June 30, 2025 the Capital Asset Reserve fund was reclassified from major to
nonmajor due significant decreases in the fund’s activities.

Reporting Units Affected by Adjustments of Beginning Balances

Nonmajor
Capital Asset  Governmental
Reserve Fund
Fund balance - beginning, as previously presented $ 315,661 $ -
Change from major fund to nonmajor fund (315,661) 315,661
Fund balance - beginning, as adjusted $ - § 315,661
31

@



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2025

G. New Pronouncements

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued the following pronouncements
that have future effective dates that will impact future financial presentations. Management has not
currently determined what impact implementation of the following statements will have on future

financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting Mode! Improvements, will be effective for the District
beginning with its fiscal year ending June 30, 2026. This statement improves key compenents of the
financial reporting model to enhance its effectiveness in providing information that is essential for
decision making and assessing a government’s accountability.

H. Subsequent Events

Management has evaluated subsequent events through December 30, 2025, which was the date
that the financial statements were available to be issued.

32

S



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Original and Variance with Actual
Final Final Budget GAAP
Budget Over (Under) Basis
REVENUES
Property taxes $ 1,211,768 $ 249,080 § 1,460,848
Charges for services 246,050 (6,773) 239,277
Grants and contributions 73,450 847.900 921,350
investment earnings 30,000 119,497 149,497
Miscellaneous 87,866 (11,650) 76,216
Total revenues 1,649,134 1,198,054 2,847,188
EXPENDITURES
Current
Activities 23,485 (4,723) 18,762
Administration 798,744 {12,136) 786,608
Aquatics 586,075 (261,128) 324,947
Fitness 254,001 (24,903) 229,098
Performing arts 98,350 (29,716) 68,634
Youth 185,761 (27,577) 158,184
Contingency 40,000 (40,000) -
Total expenditures 1,986,416 (400,183) 1,586,233
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (337,282) 1,598,237 1,260,955
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out - - -
Net change in fund balance (337,282) 1,598,237 1,260,955
Fund balance - beginning 819,014 383,348 1,202,362
Fund balance - énding $ 481,732 $ 1,981,585 $ 2,463,317

33



OTHER SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

INDIVIDUAL FUND SCHEDULES



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

CAPITAL ASSET RESERVE FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

REVENUES
Timber revenue
Investment earnings

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Capital outlay

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers out

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance (deficit} - ending

34

Original and Variance with Actual
Final Final Budget GAAP
Budget QOver (Under) Basis
$ 238,000 $ 120,462 $ 358,462
- 247 247
238,000 120,709 358,709
88,000 (46,620) 41,380
150,000 167,329 317,328
(300,000) 300,000 -
(150,000} 467,329 317,329
160,436 (162,104) (1,668)
$ 10436 $ 305225 § 315,661




NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL

AQUATIC CENTER PROJECT FUND

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

REVENUES
Property taxes
Grants and contributions
Investment earnings

Total revenues
EXPENDITURES
Debt service
Capital outlay

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Bond Proceeds
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balance
Fund balance - beginning

Fund balance - ending

35

Original and Variance with Actual
Final Final Budget GAAP
Budget Over (Under) Basis
$ 204,100 $ (204,900) § -
3,064,571 (1,414,240) 1,650,331
- 7,322 7,322
3,268,671 (1,611,018) 1,657,653
398,400 38,538 436,938
8,501,500 (1,234,888) 7,266,612
8,899,900 (1,196,350) 7,703,550
(5,631,229) {414,668) (6,045,897}
300,000 (300,000) -
- 2,000,000 2,000,000
300,000 1,700,000 2,000,000
(5,331,229) 1,285,332 (4,045,897)
5,331,229 (935,685) 4,395,544
$ - $ 349647 $ 349,647




OTHER FINANCIAL SCHEDULES



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

TAXABLE PROPERTY VALUES

Real Total Property Property
Fiscal Market Assessed Taxes Taxes
Year Value Valuation Levied Received
2025 $ 3,546,237,346 $ 1,652,884,004 $ 1,603,587 1,456,937
2023 3,429,915,732 1,581,114,264 1,445,214 1,398,946
2023 3,001,987,597 1,508,385,517 1,378,464 1,338,432
2022 2,247 ,584,135 1,437,606,051 1,330,100 1,295,085
2021 1,993,330,520 1,377,097,875 1,082,749 1,065,033

36



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT

Nehalem, Oregon
MAJOR TAXPAYERS
For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Tillamook County

% of Total
Tax Assessed Assessed
Amount Value Value

Tillamook County Creamery $ 1,184,552 $ 125,585,089 1.92%
Tillamook PUD 1,122,484 103,945,841 1.59%
Stimson Lumber Company 1,003,259 87,993,079 1.34%
Charter Communlcations 316,715 28,226,240 0.43%
Store Capital Acquisitions 301,121 24,899,820 0.38%
Hampton Lumber Mills Co. 255,969 21,849,980 0.33%
Fred Meyer Stores, Inc. 236,919 20,220,640 0.31%
Pelican Brewing Company 201,154 16,931,850 0.26%
Lumen Technologies Inc 166,732 15,621,312 0.24%
Kiwanda Lodge, LLC 150,764 12,524,940 0.20%
Top ten taxpayers in the county 4,939,669 457,798,791 6.99%
Remaining county taxpayers 69,717,612 6,087,619,547 93.01%
Total county taxpayers $ 74,657,281 $ 6,545,418,338 100.00%

Source: Tillamook County Department of Assessment and Taxation

37



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULE

GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDS, SERIES 2021

Due June 15 Principal Interest Base CUSIP
Year Amount Rate 658622 **
2022 $ 10,000 3.00% AAQ
2023 45,000 3.00% AB7
2024 55,000 3.00% ACS
2025 60,000 3.00% AD3

2026 70,000 3.00% AE1
2027 80,000 3.00% AF8
2028 90,000 3.00% AG6E
2029 95,000 3.00% AH4
2030 110,000 3.00% AJO
2031 120,000 3.00% AK7

2035 600,000 3.00% ALS
2038 @ 600,000 3.00% AP6
2041® 745,000 3.00% AM3
2046 1,675,000 4.00% AN1

{1) Term obligation due June 15, 2035 subject to annual mandatory redemption commencing June 15, 2032.
(2) Term obligation due June 15, 2038 subject to annual mandatory redemption commencing June 15, 2036.
(3) Term obligation due June 15, 2041 subject to annual mandatory redemption commencing June 15, 2039.

(4) Term obligation due June 15, 2046 subject to annual mandatory redemption commencing June 15, 2042.

(5) Copyright 2021, American Bankers Association. CUSIP® is a registered trademark of the American Bankers
Association. CUSIP data herein is provided by CUSIP Global Services, managed on behalf of the American
Bankers Association by S&P Global Market Intelligence. This data is not intended to create a database and does
not serve in any way as a substitute for the CUSIP service. CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an
independent company not affiliated with the District and are included solely for convenience of the registered
owners of the obligations. The District is responsible for the selection or uses of these CUSIP numbers, and no
representation is made as to their correctness on the applicable obligations as a result of various subsequent
actions Including, but not limited to, a refunding in whole or in part or the procurement of secondary market
portfolio insurance or similar enhancement by investors that is applicable to all or a portion of certain maturities of

the obligations.

38



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULE

FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OBLIGATIONS, SERIES 2021

[ Due June 15 Principal Interest Base CUSIP |
Year Amount Rate 658828 4
2022 $ 75,000 3.00% AA9
2023 100,000 3.00% AB7
2024 100,000 3.00% AC5
2025 105,000 3.00% AD3
2026 105,000 3.00% AE1
2027 110,000 3.00% AF8
2028 115,000 3.00% AGSB
2029 115,000 3.00% AH4
2030 120,000 3.00% AJO
2031 125,000 3.00% AK7

2036 " 680,000 3.00% AL5
20419 785,000 3.00% AM3
2045 715,000 3.00% AN1

(1) Term obligation due June 15, 2036 subject to annual mandatory redemption commencing June 15, 2032,
(2) Term obligation due June 15, 2041 subject to annual mandatory redemption commencing June 15, 2037.

(3) Term obligation due June 15, 2045 subject to annual mandatory redemption commencing June 15, 2042.

(4) Copyright 2021, American Bankers Association. CUSIP® is a registered trademark of the American Bankers
Association. CUSIP data herein is provided by CUSIP Global Services, managed on behalf of the American
Bankers Association by S&P Global Market Intelligence. This data is not intended to create a database and does
not serve in any way as a substitute for the CUSIP service. CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an
independent company not affiliated with the District and are included solely for convenience of the registered
owners of the obligations. The District is responsible for the selection or uses of these CUSIP numbers, and no

resentation is made as to their correctness on the applicable obligations as a result of various subsequent
to, a refunding in whole or in part or the procurement of ‘secondary market
icable to all or a portion of certain maturities of

rep
actions including, but not limited
portfolio insurance or similar enhancement by investors that is app!

the obligations.

39



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

LONG-TERM DEBT SCHEDULE

FULL FAITH AND CREDIT OBLIGATIONS, SERIES 2025

Due June 15 Principal Interest Base CUSIP |
Year Amount Rate 658828 ¥
2026 % 181,000 5.07% AA9
2027 190,000 5.07% AB7
2028 200,000 5.07% AC5
2029 210,000 5.07% AD3
2030 220,000 5.07% AE1
2031 231,000 5.07% AF8
2032 243,000 5.07% AG6
2033 256,000 5.07% AH4
2034 269,000 5.07% AJO

{1) Copyright 2025, American Bankers Association. CUSIP® is a registered trademark of the American Bankers

Association. CUSIP data herein is provided by CUSIP Global Services, managed on behalf of the American
Bankers Association by S&P Global Market Intelligence. This data Is not intended 1o create a database and does
not serve in any way as a substitute for the CUSIP service. CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an
independent company not affiliated with the District and are included solely for convenience of the registered
owners of the obligations. The District is responsible for the selection or uses of these CUSIP numbers, and no
representation is made as to their correctness on the applicable obligations as a result of various subsequent
actions including, but not limited to, a refunding in whole or in part or the procurement of secondary market
portfolio insurance or similar enhancement by Investors that is applicable to all or a portion of certain maturities of

the obligations.

40



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

OUTSTANDING LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Issue Issue Date  Final Maturity ::gi::: OI::::::?Q

General Obligation Bonds

Series 2021 (a) 4/7/2021 6/15/2046 $ 4,355,000 $ 4,185,000

Subtotal General Obligation Bonds $ 4,185,000
Full Faith and Credit Obligations

Series 2021 () 47712021 6/15/2045 $ 3,250,000 $ 2.870,000

Subtotal Full Faith and Credit Obligations $ 2,870,000

Full Faith and Credit Obligations

Series 2025 @) 1/17/2025 6/15/2034 $ 2,000,000 $ 2,000,000

Subtotal Full Faith and Credit Obligations $ 2,000,000

Total Outstanding Long-Term Borrowings $ 9,055,000

(a) Concurrently with the issuance of the obligations, the District expects to issue approximately $4,355,000 in
principal amount of general obligation bonds (the "bonds"). The bonds are also being issued to finance the project.

(b) The obligations

41

®




NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

TAXABLE PROPERTY VALUES
. M5 Real Market Total Assessed
Fiscal Year
Values () Valuation ()
2025 3,546,237,346 1,652,884,004
2024 3,429,915,732 1,581,114,264
2023 3,001,987,597 1,508,385,517
2022 2,247,584,135 1,437,6086,051
2021 1,993,330,520 1,377,097,875
2020 1,970,822,740 1,330,536,016
2019 1,848,041,010 1,278,764,604
2018 1,747,212,508 1,226,551,723
2017 1,629,439,752 1,179,599,159
2016 1,582,661,015 1,137,551,620

(a) Value represents the Real Market Value of taxable properties, including the reduction in Real Market Value of
specially assessed properties such as farm and forestland. This value is also commonly referred to as the Measure 5

Real Market Value by county assessors.

(b) Assessed value of property in the District on which the permanent rate is applied to derive ad valorem property
taxes, excluding urban renewal and any other offsets. The District has no urban renewal or other offsets.

42



NORTH COUNTY RECREATION DISTRICT
Nehalem, Oregon

SCHEDULE OF PROPERTY TAX TRANSACTIONS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2025

Taxes Taxes
Receivable 2024-2025 Receivable
Tax Year July 1, 2024 Levy Adjustments Collections June 30, 2025
2024-2025 3 - $ 1,503,587 $ (38,277) $ 1430673 $ 34,637
2023-2024 30,871 - (887) 16,842 13,142
2022-2023 11,391 - (816) 5,169 5,406
2021-2022 5,381 - - 2,925 2,456
2020-2021 1,623 - - 1,145 478
2019-2020 364 - - 73 291
2018-2019 256 - a1 215
Prior 2,044 - - 69 1,975
Subtotal - Prior 51,930 - (1,703) 26,264 23,963
Total $ 51,930 $ 1,503,587 $ (39,980) 1,456,937 $ 58,600
Add:
Other taxes and interest 3,911
Undistributed taxes with county, July 1, 2024 -
Total available 1,460,848
Less: Turnovers to District (1,460,848)
$ -

Undistributed taxes with county, June 30, 2025

43




AUDIT COMMENTS AND DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY
STATE REGULATIONS



KOONTZ,BL-ASQUEZ

ASSOCIA;FES, P.C.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS

Board of Directors
North County Recreation District
Nehalem, Oregon 97131

We have audited the basic financial statements of North County Recreation District as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2025, and have issued our report thereon dated December 30, 2025. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of

America.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether North County Recreation District’s financial
statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised
Statutes, as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-010-0000 through 162-010-0320 of the
Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which could
have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statemént amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and

accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments
and disclosures, which included, but were not limited to, the following:

Accounting records

Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295)
Indebtedness limitations, restrictions, and repayment

Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294)

Insurance and fidelity bonds In force or required by law

Programs funded from outside sources

Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294)

Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 2798, 279C)

Accountability for collecting and receiving money by elected officials

920 Elm Street SW « P.O. Box 605 - Albany, Oregon 97321
(541) 926-5543 * (541) 967-9460 fax

&)



In connection with our testing, nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the District was
not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants,
including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes, as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-
010-0000 through 162-010-0320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal

Corporations, except as follows:

1. During the year ended June 30, 2025, the District expended funds in excess of the amounts
appropriated, which is in violation of ORS 294.100. The following appropriations were over
expended for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2025.

Fund Function Appropriations Expenditures Excess

Capital Projects Capital outiay $ 35,000 $ 41,380 $ 6,380
The District does not have any elected officials collecting or receiving money.

OAR 162-010-0230 Internal Control

In planning and performing our audit, we considered North County Recreation District's internal contro
over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing
our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of North County Recreation District's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly,
we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of North County Recreation District’s internal control
over financial reporting. However, we noted certain matters that we have reported to management of

the District in a separate letter dated December 30, 2025.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the board of directors and management of
North County Recreation District and the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and
should not be used by anyone other than these parties.

Koontz, Blasquez & Associates, P.C.

By: ) »”WL.%W v

' Debra L. Blasquez, CPA

Albany, Oregon
December 30, 2025

45



North County
Recreation District

North County Recreation District
FY 2024-2025 Financial Audit & Plan of Action
Board Meeting Summary Handout

Overview

This handout provides a consolidated summary of the District’s Annual Financial Audit for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2025, along with the associated Plan of Action submitted to the Oregon Secretary
of State’s Audits Division. Together, these documents reflect NCRD’s financial position, governance
practices, and corrective steps taken where needed.

Audit Results - High-Level Summary

Audit Opinion

e NCRD received an unmodified {(clean) audit opinion.

« The auditors determined the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
District’s financial position and results of operations in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles (GAAP).

« No material misstatements, fraud, or audit qualifications were identified.

Financial Position
« The District ended the fiscal year with a net position of $11.43 million, an increase of
approximately $2.84 million from the prior year.
o Totalassets are $21.3 million, with approximately $18 million invested in capital assets.
« Totalliabilities are $9.9 million, primarily related to long-term debt issued for capital
construction.

Capital Investment
« Financial activity during the year was heavily influenced by the Aquatic Center project, which
was under construction during FY 2025.
« Increased debt and capital assets reflect planned, board-approved investment in long-term
community infrastructure rather than operational shortfalls.

Funds & Reserves
» Total governmental fund balance at year-end was approximately $3.13 million.
« The General Fund maintains a stable unassigned fund balance, supporting ongoing operations
and financial resilience.

Internal Controls & Compliance
« Auditors reported:
o No disagreements with management
o No uncorrected misstatements
o Noinstances of fraud or material noncompliance
« Allidentified audit adjustments were reviewed and recorded by staff. @

POBox 207 | 361559t St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



North County
Recreation District

Plan of Action — Board Awareness Summary

As part of the audit process, the District adopted and submitted a Plan of Action addressing three
significant deficiencies. These items are common in small and rural districts and relate to capacity and

procedural structure, not financial instability.

1. Segregation of Duties
« Issue: Limited staffing restricts full separation of certain accounting duties.
« Plan of Action: Continue enhanced oversight through monthly financial reporting and Board
review/approval.
« Status: Ongoing and immediately implemented.

2. Financial Statement Preparation (GAAP)
« lssue: The District relies on external auditors to assist with preparation of GAAP-compliant

financial statements.
« Auditor Guidance: No change recommended; continued Board awareness and review is

appropriate.

« Plan of Action: Continue outsourcing specialized accounting functions as the most cost-effective
solution.

» Status: Ongoing and immediately implemented.

3. Compliance with Oregon Budget Law
« Issue: Certain expenditures exceeded appropriations prior to formal budget adjustments.
« Plan of Action: Increase monitoring of actual-to-budget expenditures and use timely
supplemental budgets or appropriation transfers as needed.
« Status: Immediate corrective action taken.

Board Role & Closing Summary

The audit and Plan of Action together demonstrate:
o Strong overall financial health
« Responsible management during a major capital transition year
« Appropriate corrective actions where procedural improvements were identified
« Active and necessary Board oversight as a key internal control
The audit is presented for formal Board acceptance, as required by the State of Oregon, along with

acknowledgment of the Plan of Action already adopted by the Board.
O

POBox 207 | 361559 St. Nehalem, OR97131 | 855.444.6273



PLAYBILL

RIVERBEND PLAYERS

COMMUNITY THEATER
NOPD PERFORMING ARTS CENTER 02/27/26 - 03/15/26

By WILLIAM GOLDMAN

Adapted from the book by

STEPHEN KING

Cmi!m © 2026 Mayill Ondine Ine. All marks yaed by permission



‘Oneof the Finest Acoustic
Guitanistsonthe

Intemational Scene”
Living Blies

‘Robb's Guitar
Playing Can Blow
You AWAY”

I//'ntage Guitar

SATURDAY Y22

Terry has performed with Joe Gocker, Reserved seating $20 E ' .l_r
Johnny Winter, and Curtis Salgado. He has Lt

won the Best Guitarist Award from the General admission $-|5

Cascade Blues Association so many times tickettomato.com/event/9809 E

they named the award after him!

His music has been featured in The Game of Thrones < 2 G‘
and The Horse Whisperer. Our Portland Blues Festival : -

veteran Bill Philips tells us that when Billy Gibbons of .

ZZ Top came to Portland he would ask "Where's :

Terry Robb playing tonight?" ok WM{WM /(Ff{gr Cf/t/q%’/i”
Terry has 17 recordings and has toured extensively 36155 9th Smat e Nehalem

in the U.S., Canada, and Europe. ' (855) 444-6273

Welcome back to the NCRD Performing Arts Stage! wiww.NCRD.org

Thank (/1120 toowr sponsors:

Rob and Sharon Borgford

N Jack and Cindy Kenne
il ’ammk@aasr . Mﬁngeﬁ“me J & NIVl Erika Navarro and David Self

Jim Gestautas

i3 the natural choice VACATION RENTALS Ocean lnn ; Nehalem River Retreat




~ 8
ARG >

BARRACUDA CAPTURES THE SOUND OF HEART DOWN TO Wr I SATURDAY
I 4

THE FINEST DETAIL BOTH YOCALLY AND INSTRUMENTALLY, 1

AND HAVE TO BE SEEN TO BE BELIFVED! é?%g EA E%
Barracuda, a tribute to Heart, first hit the stage in 2011,
and rapidly became the top Heart tribute in North A
America. In 2012, having heard rave reviews of Barracuda, \ I 7 p m

I\."

Heart's original lead guitarist and co-writer, Roger Fisher, $
drove from Seattle to Vancouver with brother Michael,

Heart’s original manager and sound technician, and also Rese rved Seat' n g

the subject of the song‘Magic Man’ to see Barracuda.

Roger and Michael went on record saying that Barracuda

General admission $25

had seen many. Roger was so impressed with Barracuda

hat he made several special guest appearances with Bar- AN ADDITIONAL $5 AT THEDOOR
racuda, on both sides of the border. b
- : tickettomato.com/event/ 9911

Based in Vancouver, BC, Barracuda's DL Car covers the
ocals of Ann Wilson with absolute perfection, which is

hot an easy task. Her precision is nothing short of
breath-taking. Sourced out of Portland, Oregon is Sarah

IMoon, who perfectly covers the vocals and guitar of

INancy Wilson. In honoring Heart’s roots and history, Bar-
acuda includes two or three Led Zeppelin classics in
heir set.

N Perforsing
36155 9th Street - Nehalem | (855) 444-6273 | www.NCRD.org *

Thank you to gur sponsors:
A\ 3 Rob and Sharon Borgford

MANZANITA £ . :
REALTY® N EGROU Jack and Cindy Kenne
4 ..ﬂ‘.gﬂ;‘i,m u Jim Gestautas . e an ma Y.. o




